
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Communities and Local 
Services Scrutiny Committee 

Agenda 

 
 

  
 

 

Members of the Public are welcome to attend this Meeting. 
 

 
1.   Introductions/Attendance at Meeting  

 
2.   Declarations of Interest  

 
3.   To approve the Minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny held on 13 June 2024 (Pages 3 - 

6) 
 

4.   Performance Indicators - Quarter 4 2023/24 – Report of the Assistant Director 

Community Services, Assistant Director Highways and Capital Projects, Acting  Head of 
Community Safety (Pages 7 - 50) 
 

5.   Stronger Community Fund – Report of the Stronger Communities Portfolio Holder  

 (Pages 51 - 64) 
 

6.   Work Programme – Report of the Assistant Director Law and Governance (Pages 65 - 76) 
 

7.   SUPPLEMENTARY ITEM(S) (if any) which in the opinion of the Chair of this Committee are 
of an urgent nature and can be discussed at the meeting.  

 
8.   Questions  

10.00 am 

Thursday, 29 August 2024 

Council Chamber, Town Hall, Darlington, DL1 5QT 

Public Document Pack



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 

 

     
 

Luke Swinhoe 

Assistant Director Law and Governance 
 

Wednesday, 21 August 2024 
 
Town Hall  
Darlington. 
 
 
Membership 
Councillors Cossins, Coe, Mrs Culley, Garner, Keir, Mahmud, McGill, M Nicholson, Snedker and 
Walters 
 
If you need this information in a different language or format or you have any other queries on 
this agenda please contact Olivia Hugill, Democratic Officer, Operations Group, during normal 
office hours 8.30 a.m. to 4.45 p.m. Mondays to Thursdays and 8.30 a.m. to 4.15 p.m. Fridays 
email: olivia.hugill@darlington.gov.uk or telephone  01325 405363 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

  

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Thursday, 13 June 2024 
 

PRESENT – Councillors Coe, Mrs Culley, Garner, Haszeldine, Mahmud, McGill, M Nicholson, 
Snedker and Walters 

 
APOLOGIES – Councillors Keir 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE – Councillor McCollom 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE – Brian Graham (Head of Environmental Services), Stephen Wiper 
(Creative Darlington Manager) and Olivia Hugill (Democratic Officer) 

 
CLS49 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2024/25 

 
 RESOLVED – That Councillor McGill be appointed as Chair of this Committee for the 2024/25 

Municipal Year.  
 

CLS50 APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2024/25 
 

 RESOLVED – That Councillor Coe be appointed Vice-Chair of this Committee for the 2024/25 
Municipal Year.  

 
CLS51 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest reported at the meeting.  

 
CLS52 TO CONSIDER THE TIMES OF MEETINGS OF THIS COMMITTEE FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 

2024/25 ON THE DATES AGREED IN THE CALENDAR OF MEETINGS BY CABINET AT MINUTE 
C106/FEB/24 
 

 RESOLVED – That the meetings of this Scrutiny Committee in the 2024/25 Municipal Year be 
held at 10.00am on the dates, as agreed on the calendar of meetings by Cabinet at Minute 

C106/Feb/24.  
 

CLS53 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THIS SCRUTINY HELD ON 18 APRIL 2024 
 

 Submitted – The Minutes (previously circulated) of the meeting of this Scrutiny Committee 
held on 18 April 2024. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny Committee held on 9 February 

2023 be approved as a correct record.  
 

CLS54 DARLINGTON CULTURAL STRATEGY ACTION PLAN FOR 2024/2025 
 

 The Group Director of Services submitted a report (previously circulated) to provide an 
update to Members on the progress of delivering the priorities in the Darlington Cultural 
Strategy 2022-2026 and the 2023/24 Action Plan.  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

  

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

The submitted report informed Members that the Darlington Cultural Strategy 2022-2026 

was approved back in 2022/23 and was informed by research, including previous Darlington 
focused Arts Enquiry Report, development work since that date and discussion with 

stakeholders including: Arts Council England, Tees Valley Combined Authority, and the 
Creative Darlington Board.  

 
The report advised that the main drivers for the Darlington Cultural Strategy 2022-2026 was 
to focus on cultural vision and assist advocacy and fundraising wards cultural priorities within 
the timespan of the document. The strategy used a definition of culture set out by the 
department of Culture, Media and Sport which covered the following areas: Arts, 
Architecture, Crafts, Creative Industries, Desing, Hertiage, Historic Environment, Museums 
and Galleries, Libraries, Archives, Film, Broadcasting and Media.  

 
The report notified Members of the five priorities which Darlington Cultural Strategy seeks to 

address between 2022 and 2026 which were; To creatively celebrate Darlington’s 
contribution to the birth of the modern passenger railway, For Darlington to have accessible, 

diverse and vibrant culture, encouraging economic growth, For Darlington to champion 
engagement with culture, particularly amongst children and young people, For culture to 

thrive within Darlington Borough and attract visitors  to the Town Centre, For Darlington to 
have a thriving theatre offer involving people of all ages.  

 
The report reflected the considerable progress which was made in 2023/24 in addressing 

particular priorities. One of the priorities which has progressed was the reopening of the 
Darlington Library post restoration back in September 2023.  

 
Members wanted clarification around the usage of the building known as The Bridge – 

Centre for Visual Arts and whether Darlington Borough Council arts equipment there may be 
utilised in future. 

 
The report stated that Darlington promoted an extensive programme of events throughout 
2023/24 which attracted visitors of all ages to Darlington Town Centre, in addition to the 
Eurovision and Coronation Programme, plus children and young people focused events. 
Members wanted to identify what percentage of children attended these events and how 

this information can be recorded in future.  
 

Members entered into discussion around the Darlington Borough Council Website and how 
the Hopetown attraction has not been promoted through this. Members also discussed how 

to organise events in smaller villages outside of the Town Centre, officers advised works from 
Darlington Borough Art Collection might be exhibited within buildings owned by Darl ington 
Borough Council subject to locations having display space and facilities .  

 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
 

     
CLS55 WORK PROGRAMME 

 
 The Assistant Director Law and Governance submitted a report (previously circulated) 

requesting that consideration be given to this Scrutiny Committee’s work programme for the 
Municipal Year 2024/25 and to consider any additional areas to be included. 

Page 4



 

  

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

A discussion was held in respect of the current items on the work programme and members 
proposed a number of items to add the Work Programme 2024/25. Some of the proposed 

items from Members included the Complaints Logging System for Councillors in their wards, 
Parking Review Policy, Allotment Strategy, Policy Review on Rubbish/Fly Tipping, Town 

Centre Programme, and the Parking Review Policy.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Work Programme be updated to reflect the decisions of this Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
29 AUGUST 2024 

 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS QTR 4 2023/24 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1. To provide Members with performance data against key performance indicators for 

2023/24, Quarter 4. 

Background 

2. This report provides performance information in line with an indicator set and Scrutiny 
Committee distribution agreed by Monitoring and Coordination Group on 4 June 2018, 

and subsequently by scrutiny Committee Chairs.  Following agreement at Council on 
5 December 2019 to align Scrutiny Committees to the updated Cabinet Portfolios, the 

indicator set has been aligned accordingly. 

3. The indicators included in this report are aligned with key priorities.  Other indicators 
may be referenced when appropriate in narrative provided by the relevant Assistant 

Directors, when providing the committee with performance updates. 

4. 35 indicators are reported to the committee, 25 of them are updated on a six-monthly 
basis and ten annually. 
 

5. Sixteen indicators are reported by Culture, nine by Community Services, one by 
Community Safety and nine by Highways & Capital Projects. 

 
April to March 2022/23 comparison to 2023/24 
 
Culture - Hippodrome 

 
6. The number of shows taking place at the theatre decreased (CUL 037 - 251 to 225).  The 

lower number is due to a number of pencilled tours moving into later tour periods. 

 
7. Visits to Darlington Hippodrome have decreased (CUL 038 – 126,357 to 125,429). The 

year end average attendance per show was 557 which was above the target of 536. 
 

8. The number of shows held at the Hullabaloo have increased (CUL 078 - 122 to 156). Of 
the 156 shows presented a target of 25 performances was achieved for the year under 

the Hippodrome brand Hip at the Hullabaloo. 
 

9.  Attendances at The Hullabaloo have increased (CUL 079 – 6,908 to 8,957). Programming 
for the shows organised by the Hippodrome are scheduled alongside the Theatre 
Hullabaloo's show programme. The awareness of the venue has grown after the 
Hullabaloo in the Park festivals.  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Culture - Head of Steam 
 

10. The number of visits to the Head of Steam decreased (CUL 071 – 40,379 to 10,120). The 
museum closed to the public at the end of December 2022 to undergo redevelopment.  

The 'Museum on the Move' outreach initiative promoted the new Hopetown site at 
different venues and settings, such as schools and community centres. 

 
11. With the agreement of members this will be the final reporting of the indicator visits to 

the Head of Steam. New indicators are in development for Hopetown. 
 

Culture – Library Service 
 

12. The percentage of reserved stock or stock from another library supplied within 7 days 
increased (CUL 070 - 64% to 66%), by 3.1%.  Reservations are marketed as "Select and 

Collect" and allow customers to “select” a book or resource from the library catalogue to 
collect from the branch of their choice, promoting both libraries. 
 

13. The number of library items borrowed, physical books, audio books and digital stock, 
increased (CUL 100 – 208,702 to 242,842), by 16.4%. Adult and children's fiction are 
most borrowed items and there is a large rise in digital borrowing. 

 
14. The amount of physical stock borrowed from Darlington Library increased (CUL 101 – 

89,785 to 114,021), by 27%. This rise is mainly due to the reopening of the library in 
September 2023. The home delivery and school customers are included in these figures. 

 
15. The amount of physical stock borrowed from Cockerton Library has increased (CUL 102 – 

76,931 to 80,824), by 5.1%. The closure of Darlington Library has had an effect on the 
number, now it is re-opened there could be a migration back to it as it houses the vast 
majority of stock. 

 
16. The number of physical visits to the Darlington Library increased (CUL 103 - 24,093 to 

160,260). The library reopened in September 2023. The increase in school visits within 

The Hive brings in many more young people, and the library team are offering a range of 
activities to encourage differing demographics  to visit the library. 

 
17. The number of physical visits to Cockerton Library increased (CUL 104 – 48,333 to 

48,961). Visitor numbers have been high whilst Darlington Library was closed. Now both 
libraries are accessible there is a reduction in those visiting the branch. The team at the 
library are providing a varied activity programme and creating a positive and welcoming 
atmosphere for all ages, to try to maintain footfall levels. 

 
18. The total number of group engagements by the library service has increased (CUL 105 - 

598 to 989). Engagements include regular in-house activities for adults and children, 
visits to external venues such as nurseries and schools and presence at external events 

such as the Tea Dance and Sustainability Event. A variety of audiences are being reached 
through the groups such as the Ukrainian Hub, Breastfeeding Support, adults with 
dementia, young children who may be neuro-diverse, and for Looked After children. 

 

Page 8



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

19. The number of group engagements by Darlington library has increased (CUL 106 - 83 to 
415). Since the reopening of the library in September the focus an effort has gone into 

planning and delivering a large range of activities, workshops and events  such as 
BookFest, Crossing the Tees, Local History Month and a varied school holiday 

programme. The Hive continue to develop activities, workshops and events utilising the 
new digital equipment. There have been 75 school class visits since reopening, engaging 

over 2,000 pupils. 
 

20. The number of group engagements by Cockerton library has increased (CUL 107 - 415 to 
474). The library put on events for adults and children during and after opening times. 

The library provides a safe and welcoming community space to enjoy for a range of 
audiences. Events for adults include Musical Memories and Watercolours and for 

children Lego, rhyme times, Boredom Busting Games, photography, singing and craft 
activities. 

 
21. The number of educational interactions by the libraries increased (CUL 108 - 167 to 304). 

The libraries support nurseries and schools with language and literacy through offering 
visits to the library. The children also learn about the local area with through the Centre 
for Local Studies. The opening of the Hive has presented an opportunity to support 
schools with science, technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM). Nine schools 
have purchased the school package offered by the library service and taken part in 
Virtual Reality workshops learning about subjects from Shakespeare to Volcanoes, 3D 
design and print, robotics and laser cutting. 

 
22. The number of enquiries directed to the Centre for Local Studies increased (CUL 109 – 

2,994 to 4,823).  Whilst Darlington Library was closed the Local Studies staff dealt with 
email, telephone enquiries and booked appointments at the Cockerton library to satisfy 
public enquiries. Requests have increased now that the in-person service has returned 
to the library. 

 
Community Services 
 

23. The number of Street Champions who are registered as being actively involved in litter 
picking has increased by 95. (ENV 002 – 522 to 617). The Keep Britain Tidy Spring and 

Autumn Clean the Litter Free Durham and Darlington campaigns have encouraged new 
groups, for example Talking Out The Trash, Haughton Wombles, Eastbourne Hubs and 

The Denes and The Well, to set up regular litter picking events throughout the year 
supported through Street Champions. 

 
24. The total number of large fly-tips reported has decreased (ENV 006c – 700 to 668). 
 
25. The total number of small fly-tips reported has increased (ENV 006d – 2,491 to 3,048). A 

large proportion of these are identified as side waste, put out particularly in back lanes 
at the same time as refuse collection. 

 
26. The overall total number of fly-tips reported has increased (ENV 006e – 3,191 to 3,716). 

The increase is due to additional reporting of side waste (classed as fly-tipping) by both 

Enforcement Officers and Fire Service. Overall, 95.4% are being removed within the time 
scales irrespective of numbers. 

Page 9



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
27. The percentage of household waste, that is collected that is either reused, recycled, or 

composted, data up to June, has decreased (ENV 009 – 31.7% to 30.8%) below the 
England average but in line with the North East.  Work continues to be undertaken by 

Street Scene and communication teams to increase recycling and reduce contamination. 
Staff are also working with the new waste contractor to maximise the amount of 

material that is recovered from residual waste and sent for recycling. 
 

28. The percentage of small fly tips removed within target time has increased (ENV 021 – 
96.7% to 99.3%). On average 96.6% of these tips were collected within target of 5 days. 

 
29. The percentage of large fly tips removed within target time scales increased (ENV 022 – 

93.7% to 100%). On average 94.2% of these tips were collected within target. A longer 
time can be required due to the complexity of the collection and requirement for special 

resources (e.g. asbestos).  
 
30. The litter score average percentage increased (ENV 024 - 71% to 84%).  Street Scene 

continue to assist with the Civic Enforcement back lane project, which incorporates litter 
picking of the front street as well as the back lane. 

 
Community Safety 

 
31. The number of prosecutions for fly-tipping has increased (ENV 023 - 7 to 23). Nine were 

for when a Fixed Penalty had previously been issued whether for Duty of Care or Fly-Tip 
and had not been paid to Civil Processing. The additional 14 were for the Environment 
Act 1995, Section 110 offence. The Environmental Crime Coordinator together with 
other Civic Enforcement officers continue to explore and implement a range of 
measures to tackle these problems including bin removals, letter-drops and camera 
enforcement where circumstances permit.  
 

32. The percentage of high-risk inspections carried out by Trading Standards has increased 
(REG 803 - 58% to 100%).  The number of inspections, mostly on-premises inspections, 

planned and completed was 65 (100%). Issues identified during inspection have either 
been corrected immediately or revisits and further advice given. 

 
Highways & Capital Projects 

 
33. The percentage of non-frequent bus services running on time (TCP 101) is no longer 

reported by National Statistics at local authority level but for the Tees Valley Combined 
Authority. The figure for the year ending March 2023 was 88% on time. Local data 
supplied directly by Arriva shows that the 2023/24, the average punctuality has been 
76.13% (on time) across services operating in Darlington. With the agreement of 
members, this local indicator will be reported instead of TCP 101. 
 

34. The percentage of principal roads where maintenance should be considered (A class) 
(TCP 200) was 7.2%. This percentage was established by a change in method, making it 
not comparable with previous years. With the agreement of members this new method 

of recording will be reported instead of TCP 200. Over the past year maintenance was 
carried out on a total road length of 0.6km of A class roads. 

Page 10



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
35. The percentage of non-principal roads where maintenance should be considered (B and 

C class) (TCP 202) was 4.7%. This percentage was established by a change in method, 
making it not comparable with previous years. With the agreement of members this new 

method of recording will be reported instead of TCP 202. Over the past year 
maintenance was carried out on a total road length of 2.3km of B and C class roads. 

 
36. The percentage unclassified roads where maintenance should be considered (TCP 202) 

was 4.1%. This percentage was established by a change in method, making it not 
comparable with previous years. With the agreement of members this new method of 

recording will be reported instead of TCP 203. Over the past year maintenance was 
carried out on a total road length of 2.4km of unclassified roads. 

 
37. The number of people killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents  has decreased 

based on pre-pandemic traffic data and volumes. (TCP 600 – 47 to 37). Of the 37 there 
has been 3 fatalities.  

 
38. The number of people slightly injured in road traffic accidents  has decreased (TCP 601 – 

89 to 81), despite traffic volumes recovering to similar levels to that recorded prior to 
Covid-19, showing a downward trend since the pandemic. The Council’s Local Transport 
Plan outlines the investment in speed management and casualty reduction schemes. 

 
39. The number of children killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents  has decreased 

(TCP 602 – 4 to 1). The Council invest in road safety education. There have been no child 
fatalities since 2013. 

 
40. The number of children slightly injured in road traffic accidents  has decreased (TCP 603 

– 17 to 12). The long-term trend shows significant reductions from the 45 recorded in 
2012. 

 
41. The overall public satisfaction with Public Transport Theme has decreased (TCP 900 – 

56% to 47%), which is below the Highways and Transport Network average of 50%. Tees 

Valley Combined Authority are the Local Transport Authority responsible for public 
transport and the Council will continue to work in partnership to steer investment into 

public transport in Darlington to improve satisfaction levels. 
 

Performance Summary 
 

42. 31 of the 35 indicators reported have Quarter 4 (year-end) data which can be compared 
with the same period for 2022/23. 

 
43. When taking into consideration what is best performance for each indicator: 

 
a) 24 of the 31 indicators have increased when compared to the same period as last 

year. 
 

b) 7 of the 31 indicators have decreased when compared to the same period as last 

year. 
 

Page 11



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

44. A detailed performance scorecard is attached at Appendix 1. 
 

45. Detailed performance and narratives for each indicator is attached at Appendix 2. 
 
Recommendations 

46. It is recommended that: 

a) Performance information provided in this report is reviewed and noted, and 

relevant queries raised with appropriate Assistant Director or Head of Service. 

b) Agreement of the four alternative indicators. 

 

Ian Thompson 

AD – Community Services 

Anthony Hewitt 

AD – Highways and Capital 

Projects 

 

Darren Ellis 

Acting Head of 

Community Safety 

 

Background Papers 

No background papers were used in the preparation of this report. 

 
Council Plan This report contributes to the Council Plan by involving Members in the 

scrutiny of performance relating to the delivery of the key priorities 
 
COMMUNITIES – working together for safer, healthier and more engaged 
communities 
 
LOCAL ENVIRONMENT – a well-connected, clean and sustainable borough 

 
Addressing inequalities  This report supports the promotion of diversity 

There are no specific indicators on inequalities contained within this report 
 

Tackling Climate Change There is no impact on carbon and climate change as a result of this report 
 

There are no specific indicators on climate change contained within this 
report 
 

Efficient and effective use 
of resources 

Scrutiny of performance is integral to optimising outcomes.   
 
This report has no impact on the Council’s Efficiency Programme. 
 

Health and Wellbeing This report supports performance improvement relating to improving the 
health and wellbeing of residents  
 

S17 Crime and Disorder This report supports the Councils Crime and Disorder responsibilities  
 

Page 12



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Wards Affected This report supports performance improvement across all Wards   
 

Groups Affected This report supports performance improvement which benefits all groups   
 

Budget and Policy 
Framework  

This report does not represent a change to the budget and policy 
framework 

Key Decision This is not a key decision 
 

Urgent Decision This is not an urgent decision  
 

Impact on Looked After 
Children and Care Leavers 

This report has no impact on Looked After Children or Care Leavers  
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL#

Indicator Title Return 
Format Reported What is 

best 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 - 
Qtr 1

2023/2024 - 
Qtr 2

2023/2024 - 
Qtr 3

2023/2024 - 
Qtr 4

2021/2022 
compared to 

2020/2021

2022/2023 
compared to 

2021/2022

2023/2024 
compared to 

2022/2023

CUL 037 Number of shows held at the Hippodrome Number Monthly Higher 0 173 251 54 93 180 225   

CUL 038 Number of individual attendances at Hippodrome 
theatre shows Number Monthly Higher 0 83,298 126,357 26,354 43,541 97,626 125,429   

CUL 070
Reservations - where an item is reserved from 
stock or from another library and is supplied 
within 7 days, shown as a %

Percentage Annually Higher 61% 60% 64% 66%   

CUL 071 Number of visits to the Head of Steam Number Monthly Higher 4,216 24,859 40,379 3,609 7,755 10,055 10,120   

CUL 078 Number of shows held at the Hullabaloo Number Monthly Higher 0 107 122 17 30 103 156   

CUL 079 Number of individual attendances at Hullabaloo 
shows Number Monthly Higher 0 3,622 6,908 1,441 2,032 5,953 8,957   

CUL 100 Number of library items borrowed Number Monthly Higher 172,519 214,027 208,702 48,149 112,480 175,345 242,843   

CUL 101 Physical Stock borrowed from Darlington Library Number Monthly Higher 101,553 136,403 89,785 15,507 43,114 78,139 114,021   

CUL 102 Physical Stock borrowed from Cockerton Library Number Monthly Higher 12,320 36,748 76,931 22,672 47,808 63,785 80,824   

CUL 103 Number of physical visits to Darlington Library Number Monthly Higher 0 62,657 24,093 0 13,722 87,985 160,260   

CUL 104 Number of physical visits to Cockerton Library Number Monthly Higher 11,279 48,333 15,413 30,222 38,788 48,961 NA  

CUL 105 Number of group engagements Number Monthly Higher 257 598 183 365 686 989 NA  

CUL 106 Number of group engagements at Darlington 
Library Number Monthly Higher 158 83 0 54 236 415 NA  

CUL 107 Number of group engagements at Cockerton 
Library Number Monthly Higher 80 415 164 270 364 474 NA  

CUL 108 Number of educational interactions Number Monthly Higher 55 173 64 106 203 304 NA  

CUL 109 Number of enquires directed to the Centre for 
Local Studies Number Monthly Higher 3,445 2,994 612 1,384 3,140 4,823 NA  

ENV 002
Number of Street Champions who are registered 
as being actively involved in litter picking a 
minimum of once per month

Number Quarterly Higher 174 416 522 562 587 593 617   

ENV 006c Total number of large fly-tips reported Number Quarterly Lower 825 700 186 386 491 668 NA  

ENV 006d Total number of small fly-tips reported Number Quarterly Lower 2,138 2,491 841 1,535 2,176 3,048 NA  

ENV 006e Total number of fly-tips reported Number Quarterly Lower 2,963 3,191 1,027 1,921 2,667 3,716 NA  

ENV 009 % household waste that is collected that is either 
reused, recycled or composted Percentage Quarterly Higher 35.1% 32.4% 31.7% 31.2% 32.7% 32.8% 30.8%   

ENV 021 % of small fly tips removed within target time Percentage Monthly Higher 99.5% 93.6% 96.7% 99.2% 83.3% 98.1% 99.3%   

ENV 022 % of large fly tips removed within target time Percentage Monthly Higher 100.0% 93.6% 93.7% 93.5% 79.6% 90.3% 100.0%   

ENV 023 Number of prosecutions for fly-tipping Number Quarterly Higher No data 
available

No data 
available 7 3 8 17 23 NA NA 

ENV 024 Land Audit Management System - Litter Score Percentage 
Value Quarterly Higher No data 

available
No data 
available 71.0% No data 

available
No data 
available 79.0% 84.0% NA NA 

APPENDIX 1
2023 2024- Year End data direction of travel

No data 
available

No data 
available

Annual indicator no data to report for 
these quarters

QUARTER 4Communities and Local Services Scrutiny 
Committee

P
age 15



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL#

Indicator Title Return 
Format Reported What is 

best 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 - 
Qtr 1

2023/2024 - 
Qtr 2

2023/2024 - 
Qtr 3

2023/2024 - 
Qtr 4

2021/2022 
compared to 

2020/2021

2022/2023 
compared to 

2021/2022

2023/2024 
compared to 

2022/2023

APPENDIX 1
2023 2024- Year End data direction of travelQUARTER 4Communities and Local Services Scrutiny 

Committee

REG 803 Trading Standards : % of high risk inspections 
carried out Percentage Quarterly Higher 100% 100% 58% 48% 75% 94% 100%   

TCP 101 Bus punctuality - % of non-frequent bus services 
running on time Percentage Annually Higher 93.0% 88.9% No data 

available
No data 
available  NA NA

TCP 200 % of principal roads where maintenance should 
be considered (A class) Percentage Annually Lower 1.87% 1.29% 1.47% No data 

available   NA
TCP 202 % of non principal roads where maintenance 

should be considered (B and C class) Percentage Annually Lower 5.97% 5.42% 5.30% No data 
available   NA

TCP 203 % of unclassified roads where maintenance 
should be considered Percentage Annually Lower 13.1% 15.9% 16.5% No data 

available   NA
TCP 600 Number of people killed or seriously injured in 

road traffic accidents Number Annually Lower 27 41 47 37   

TCP 601 Number of people slightly injured in road traffic 
accidents Number Annually Lower 97 113 89 81   

TCP 602 Number of children killed or seriously injured in 
road traffic accidents Number Annually Lower 2 5 4 1   

TCP 603 Number of children slightly injured in road traffic 
accidents Number Annually Lower 14 8 17 12   

TCP 900
Overall Public Satisfaction with Public Transport 
Theme (National Highways and Transport 
Survey)

Percentage Annually Higher 57% 56% 47% 42%   

Better than =  13 18 24
Not as good 

as =  10 14 7
The same as 

=  1 0 0
No 

comparative 
data

NA 11 3 4

Annual indicator no data to report for 
these quarters

P
age 16



����
������
���

���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���������
�������	��

����
��
�����

�����������������
���� ���!"�#$%�&'��() *+,+�-!%�)! ./�"�0�$12((��3,%(�),4�5�,��2  ,�6%)�,"!%24�)$7,+�2("�8%2(9�,�:$. ,�;�-!,<2%!�=,,4�>$*(!%.�"�(�,%�?2!�2(�>2%!,%�2(+�@  ,(�A,(!/"�$B,%2C5�,�(*7D,%�$#�B,%#$%72(),"�2)%$""�&'�<2"� $<,%�!�2(�#$%,)2"!C�E2(*2%.�B%$1,+�!$�D,�2�+�##�)* !�B%$�%277�(��B,%�$+�<�!��2� 2%�,�(*7D,%�$#�B,()�  ,+�!$*%"�7$1�(���(!$� 2!,%�!$*%�B,%�$+"CF����GHI�J�HK�HGL�K��M�L�NOGHKP���Q��K��JK�GRK�HKSTUVWX�YZ�[\Y][�\Ŵ_�̀a�a\W�bcddY_XYUWePfHO�GK��F�Q�ghi�jklmno�FpQ���

5,q! Page 17



�����
��������

���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ������	��
���	�����	
�

�	���	��
��
	��

��������������������� !"�#�$%&'�#�!(�)�!")�*$�+,$�-.-/��,)�*&0,12�3�2���$%&'�#�!(�!4�#,  �,22�$3,$1�)�(!#�5/6��7!"�4�#�2���,4�#,8��,22�$3,$1�)�0�#�0�#(!#&,$1��",)�%0�,1#!))�2���9%,#2�#:��4*3�$1*$8���, 2�;�,4�#,8��!11%0,$1;�,)�(!  !"):�+,$�<===�,4�#,8��,22�$3,$1�>:�?�'�<=@A�,4�#,8��,22�$3,$1�>�,$3�B,#1��<CC=�,4�#,8��,22�$3,$1�>6��D�,#��$3�,4�#,8��,22�$3,$1��",)�,2�CCE�4F)�,�2,#8�2�!(�CG=6H����IJK�L�JM�JIN�M��O�N�PQIJMR���S��M��LM�ITM�JMUVWXYZ�[\�]̂_]̀]_Vab�accŶ_âdYe�ac�cfYacZY�ef[gehRiJQ�IM��H�S�jkl�mnopqr�HsS���

��t2 Page 18



�����
������
����

���� ���� ���� ���� ����
��	� ��	���	� ��	� ��	� ��	�
����������������

������� !"#����$��%� �&��'(�)�* �#&+"))�* '�#&�))",*-� "$��� ".��)�* /�0""%"����"-�*�1�"$ 2�)!0���3*� �)"4-� "*"))�* 1�"$ 2�0��#*2"1 2�!�*2"!*�562!�2�)7�*-� "$��� "0"��",� "*%�#&7�"$" ��-��"10" 2)!0���!��5("$�� "*%!�!#� "���#&� �11�"-�*� 2�0""%�1�"$ 2�� "���,2!*2���!#�**���!0)� " 2�7-0)!*�#&! �)�"�))",�*-� "$��� "��������0""%,2!*2$�30�"#)"�# "�"$�"#��)��562���!��7"�! !��!#*�����!# 2!�����!*� 2� !�"11���&�  2�)!0���35
8����9:;�<�:=�:9>=�?�>@A9:=B���C�=�<=�9D=�:=EFGHIHJKLMLHNIOFPQMRSPTHLMLHNLUMOPVWPHMOPVWTHPXIQPOYLHZFGHIHJM[\\ZFLU]FOYFQ̂UIJM_B̀:A�9=�8�C�abEĉcdef8gC���

6�h Page 19



�����
������
������

���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ����
��	�� ��	��

��	��

�	���	��
��	��
����������������

����� ���!"# �$%#%��&�'"(!)%%���*$#+,�!��'�-./..%#�*$�-0#-�$�1�"#&��*%23""�*0)0���*%4(%�%��&�'"(!%�-#�0�#�%./.56./.74) %�-#�0�#�%-�)!�)%$(++�-�*%1�*�� )*$ �%%(*0 8 �!�)  !�##" )*$!#���*(%9!�*%-� 4(%�(*,)-"(*0%#*2���:;� ���#*%��;#1�:�*)'"�$� %#�*0)0�4(%�#1�-</8<//&�#&"�)-#�*$,)-"(*0%#*)*$%#&-#�#%�%��*�4=#&�%#4*,)-"(*0%#* (%�84�(!�4(""#&�*#*<>%�?�"9./.72@�4&�-+#-�)*!�(*$(!)%#- 4(""'�$-)+%�$+#-)&&-#1)"+#-%��*�A%B�)-%�-2C����DEF�G�EH�EDIH�J�IKLDEHM���N�H�GH�DOH�EHPQRSTUVWXYZY[Z[V[\T]T̂_VẀ[T̂RaMbEL�DH�C�N�cdefghijkClN���

��A% Page 20



���
������
������

���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ����
���� ��	�������

����	�� ���


����������������
����� !"#�$%#&'�#�(��)*����+,--*.*-$$*�*'/��$�0!&�'�$'1*(2�#%*#*2�3�4�)�$'���5�*',()�'���+3&&$)'$1�.'*()+3&*����+,--*.*-$$67��'�3#&-�(�5$�'$$1�$'/'$%���$'0809:080!;.,�&'$/'*113(/�$'7��+,--*.*-$$2$(�3(,�#�$.�2�*--�(/3(/*##�$%#1,#�.�#2��),-�)*-$(/#3)����7��*�'�+,--*.*-$$<##�$%&'$/'*11�%�32�2*(#$1��31�#2$(�-32�%3��)*��*4*3-*.3-3�5$�&'$),2�'#6=$$)3(2$1�-�4�-#�'$1+,--*.*-$$�3'�#*2'$##���5�*'%3���3/�-3/��#3(2-,)3(/3(2-,)3(/>$1�(?#@A3-1A�#�34*-*()B*'-3(/�$(C$--�/�D%*')#*()#,22�##�,-#�$%#3(2-,)3(/E*#�7'*3(+$1���#�34*-;F$-4�G*-$(/GDH,')�'#��%'$��*()I'31*'5F2�$$-D##�1.-5J*(/�'#;*))3�3$(*-&�'�$'1*(2�*))�)�$'.$��),��$&$&,-*'3�56

K����LMN�O�MP�MLQP�R�QSTLMPU���V�P�OP�LWP�MPXYZ[\]̂_̀â b̀a\cdeffa\gYcce[eĉ^hUiMT�LP�K�V�jklmnopqrKsV���

7�t� Page 21



����
����
�����
���

���� ���� ���� ���� ���	 �����
	�
�
����
��

�
���
��
�
��

�����������������
��� ���!"��#��$�%& '$(�!&&�$)!$*��+�"�+%�!* '%%�&���,-++!#!+''�. '( !//�0����� ��1%�!�.'%1&1"��& �$)�'2�1$* �!%1$(�!&&�$)!$*��!&�%�'3%�'"� � �*�$&�4�! %0�5&&�$)!$*���!%�( '3$�#4�*1 *!�67888�!&&�$)!$*�%�.� �4�! �%1$*��989905&&�$)!$*��!&����!& ��,-++!#!+''�%�'3%��!%�!+%'� 1%�$�1$�&���+!%&�:-! &� 0��;&�1%��"1)�$&�&�!&�!3! �$�%%�'2�&���"�$-���!%�( '3$�!2&� �+!%&�%-//� %�,-++!#!+''�1$�&���<! =�2�%&1"!+0>����?@A�B�@C�@?D�C��E�D�FG?@CH���I��C��BC�?JC�@CKLMNOP�QR�STUSVSULWX�WYYOTUWTZO[�WY�\LXXWNWXQQ�[]Q̂ [_H̀@G�?C��>�I�abc�defghi�>jI���

��k& Page 22



��������
���������
��� 	
		�	�	
	�			
	
�	

���
������ ��� ���

�������������������������� !"���#�$%��� �!�������#���!����&'()*+,-)./0
1234567896�:5;323<�3=9>=6=?�56�@=>8=A;=3�BCBD�26?�8E=�56F3=2G=�56�;9339H=?�58=AG�E2G�;==6�I=3<�>9G585I=J�KE=�L57M3=�L93�NM4<�89�@=>8=A;=3�H2G�OPQDDRQ�2�DDJOS�35G=�L39A�8E=�PTQRPU�L93�V>354�89�NM6=J�KE=�E57E=3�4=I=4�9L�58=A�;9339H567�3=A256=?�L93�8E=�3=G8�9L�8E=�<=23JKE=�89824�6MA;=3�9L�58=AG�;9339H=?�L93�8E=�<=23�H2G�BPBQTPDQ�2�ROJPS�35G=�L39A�BCTQWCB�56�BCBBXBDJ�Y57M3=G�56F4M?=�>E<G5F24�;99ZGQ�2M?59�;99ZG�26?�?575824�G89FZQ�H58E�WRS�9L�58=AG�;9339H=?�L39A�56�;326FEJ�V?M48�26?�FE54?3=6[G�L5F8596�23=�9M3�A9G8�;9339H=?�58=AGJ�\E=6�F9A>23=?�H58E�BCRUXBCQ�8E=�42G8�<=23�;=L93=�8E=�45;323<�F49GM3=�L93�8E=�>26?=A5F�26?�3=G89328596Q�FE54?3=6[G�;9339H567�5G�28�2�G5A5423�4=I=4Q�2?M48�;9339H567�E2G�?=F456=?�26?�8E=3=�5G�2�4237=�35G=�56�?575824�;9339H567J

])(()̂_̀0abcdef�g�hidjckl�mjn�boncfilo�ikp�qjdfjnor(_s(_̂t�s(�u0t�vŵ_sxyz{a|}y�~�z�|}y�{}�����{}{��-+0�0�s(�rs(̂�s/_s������������������������������������������������������������ �¡��������¢£x¤_w)̂s(�])�0¥¦��§̈¨©ª«�]¬�.0(

K=8 Page 23



�����
��������

����	�	� ����	�		 ����	�	
 ����	�	�
���
�������
���

���� ���� ��	�

������������������
� !"#$%&�"'($)�#"�#""*+,�(-�%�$*"'(.+/"�&#0/%/!�$%/,�1 +-�' +!�0(//(1�2/(.�3%/&#-4'(-�5#0/%/!6�7*/� (.+�,+&#8+/!�%-,�"$ ((&�$*"'(.+/"�%/+�%&"(�+-$%9"*&%'+,�#-�' +"+�2#4*/+"6�:+� %8+�"++-�%�9("#'#8+�#-$/+%"+�#-�0(//(1#-4�2/(.�3%/&#-4'(-�5#0/%/!�"#-$+�#'�/+(9+-+,�#-�;+9'+.0+/�<=<>6�?-�<=<>@<A�BBAC=<B�9 !"#$%&�#'+."�1+/+�0(//(1+,D�%�<EF�#-$/+%"+�2/(.�&%"'�!+%/C�1 +-�(*/�,((/"�1+/+�$&("+,�%-,�' +�"+/8#$+�1%"�8#%�;+&+$'�%-,�G(&&+$'�1#' �-(�0/(1"#-46H#8+-�' +�$&("*/+�%-,�/+.(,+&&#-4�1(/)"�#'�#"�-('�"*/9/#"#-4�' #"�!+%/�" (1"�%�A>F�,+$/+%"+�2/(.�<=BI@<=�2#4*/+"6�:+�1(*&,�%-'#$#9%'+�%�'/*+�/+2&+$'#(-�(2�2#4*/+"�-+J'�!+%/�1 +-�1+�$%-�9/+"+-'�' +�#.9%$'�(2�%�2*&&�!+%/�(2�(9+-#-46

K����LMN�O�MP�MLQ�P��R�Q�STLMPU���V��P��OP�LWP�MPXYZ[\]̂_�̀ab]c�dbeebfgh�iebj�k̂e_\lmabl�n\dêeZoUpMT�LP��K�V�qrn�stsuvw�KxV���

y+J' Page 24



�����
������
���

��	
���� ��	
���� ��	
���� ��	
�������
����

���
����

�������
���
������������� 
!"##"$%&'
(#")
*"+,-#."&
/%0#1#2
%3
4#-5%+.1062
7%'7
.7%3
2-1#
58-
."
.7-
41#.%16
+6"38#-
"(
.7-
."$&
6%0#1#29
:7%3
%3
1
;<=
#%3-
(#")
>?@AB>?9
:7-#-
+"865
0-
1
)%'#1.%"&
."
C1#6%&'."&
/%0#1#2
"D-#
.7-
+")%&'
2-1#
&"$
%.
%3
#-E"4-&-5
13
%.
7"83-3
.7-
D13.
)1F"#%.2
"(
3."+,9
G"$-D-#H
.7-
%&+#-13-5
83-
"(
*"+,-#."&
713
0--&
D-#2
4"3%.%D-9
*83.")-#3
+1&
+"&.%&8-
."
3-6-+.
1&5
+"66-+.
1.
0".7
0#1&+7-39
IJ-
'-&-#1662
+")41#-
"8#
3.1.%3.%+3
$%.7
>?@AB>?
13
.7%3
$13
.7-
613.
3-.
"(
(%'8#-3
0-("#-
.7-
(68+.81.%"&
+183-5
02
.7-
41&5-)%+
1&5
.7-&
"8#
#-3."#1.%"&
+6"38#-39

K����LMN O�MP�MLQ
P�
R Q
STLMPU�� V 
P�
OP�LWP�MPXYZ[\]̂_
̀ab]c
dbeebfgh
iebj
kb]cgeabl
m\dêeZnUoMT�LP�
K�V kpm
qrstuv
KwV� �

:-x. Page 25



��������
���������
���	�� 
�

�

�
��


�
��
�

��

	��	��
��� �����

����������������� �!���"��"��#�� �$%"�$�&�������'(�������$")*+,-./01-234
56789:;<=:�>9?767@�A==<A688�B6C�?DD:�DE<7DFD8@�;==G�H9<B�IJKLMJK�<B7=N;B�<BD�G==7C�C9:OD�7D=PD:9:;�9:�QDP<DF?D7�MKMR�<=�S67OB�MKMTU�VB9C�O=FP67DC�H9<B�MKILWJM�PD=P8D�GN79:;�<BD�HB=8D�A9CO68�@D67�=A�MKIXYMKL�<BD�86C<�@D67�?DA=7D�<BD�89?767@�O8=CN7D�A=7�<BD�P6:GDF9O�6:G�7DC<=76<9=:U�VBD�9:O7D6CD�9:�COB==8�Z9C9<C�H9<B9:�VBD�[9ZD�?79:;C�9:�F6:@�F=7D�@=N:;�PD=P8DL�6:G�<BD�89?767@�<D6F�67D�=AAD79:;�6�76:;D�=A�6O<9Z9<9DC�<=�D:O=N76;D�G9AAD79:;�GDF=;76PB9OCU�VBD�89?767@�ADD8C�6�F=7D�Z9?76:<�6:G�HD8O=F9:;�P86OD�<=�?DL�6:G�HD�:=<9OD�6�G9ZD7CD�76:;D�=A�ONC<=FD7C�NC9:;�<BD�CP6OD�HB9OB�9C�H=:GD7AN8�<=�CDDU

\-,,-]̂_4`abcde�f�ghcibjk�lim�anmbehkn�hjo�piceimnq,̂r,̂]s�r,�t4s�uv]̂rwxyz̀ {|x�}~y�{|x�z|�����z|z��1/4�4�r,�qr,]�r3̂r������������������������������������������������� ���������¡�¢��������£¤w¥̂v-]r,�\-�4¦§��̈©ª«¬�\®�24,

VDE< Page 26



����
������

����������	��� ������


����
����

����������

����
����

��������������� !"�#���$��$��%� &��$�'�(���!���)*���� ��'$+�,�!�$-./012340567
89:9;<=�>?@AB=:�CB=B�D=BE9F;GAHI�J9KJ�CJ9H:;�LG=H9>K;<>�M9A=G=I�CG:�FH<:BE�N<=�=B:;<=G;9<>O�><C�A<;J�H9A=G=9B:�G=B�GFFB::9AHB�;JB=B�9:�G�=BE?F;9<>�9>�;J<:B�P9:9;9>K�;JB�A=G>FJQ�R<CBPB=O�;JB�G>>?GH�;<;GH�<N�P9:9;<=:�=B@G9>:�J9KJB=�;JG>�D=BSDG>EB@9F�HBPBH:Q�TUVOWXY�9>�WYZ[\WY�F<@DG=BE�C9;J�]̂O[_Z�9>�WYWU\W]̀aJB�DG=;S;9@B�;BG@�G;�b<FcB=;<>�M9A=G=I�G=B�D=<P9E9>K�G�PG=9BE�GF;9P9;I�D=<K=G@@B�CJ9FJ�9:�><;9FBGAHI�9>F=BG:9>K�N<<;NGHH�G>E�F=BG;9>K�G�D<:9;9PB�G>E�CBHF<@9>K�G;@<:DJB=B�N<=�GHH�GKB:Qd0//0efg7hijklm�n�opkqjrs�tqu�ivujmpsv�prw�xqkmquvy/fz/fe{�z/�|7{�}~efz����h������������������������427�7�z/�yz/e�z6fz����������������� �¡���¢��¢��£��¤��¢�¥�¦�������§̈�������¥¢©�ª���¢�� �«¬�f~0ez/�d0�7£®¦�̄°±²³́�dµ�57/

aB¶; Page 27



�������
�����������

�	
����� ������� �	
����� ������� �	
����� ����������
�����

����
�����

���������
��������������� !"
#$%�&'&�%()*)%+%(,-�.(/012%�3%)10*3�.(4$51-%�*/,.6.,.%-�753�*210,-�*(2�/$.023%(8�513�6.-.,-�,5�%9,%3(*0�6%(1%-�-1/$�*-�(13-%3.%-�*(2�-/$550-�*(2�513�:3%-%(/%�*,�%9,%3(*0�%6%(,-�-1/$�*-�,$%�#%*�;*(/%�*(2�<1-,*.(*=.0.,>�?6%(,@�A%*/$.()�*�3*()%�57�*12.%(/%-�B%�%()*)%2�)351:-�.(/012.()�,$%�CD3*.(.*(�E1=8�F3%*-,7%%2.()�<1::53,�)351:-�*(2�$*6%�-,*3,%2�(%B�)351:-�753�*210,-�B.,$�2%+%(,.*8�753�>51()�/$.023%(�B$5�+*>�=%�(%13542.6%3-%8�*(2�753�G55D%2�H7,%3�/$.023%(@�#$%�,%*+�.(�#$%�E.6%�/5(,.(1%�,5�2%6%05:�*/,.6.,.%-8�B53D-$5:-�*(2�%6%(,-�1,0.-.()�,$%�(%B�2.).,*0�%I1.:+%(,@�#$%-%�577%3�*�3*()%�57�$1)%0>�%9/.,.()�%9:%3.%(/%-�-1/$�*-�J1-./�K3521/,.5(8�;.).,*0�H3,8�*(2�2%-.)(.()�L;�:3.(,*=0%M-@

N����OPQ"R�PS�POT�S��U"T�VWOPSX��"Y"�S��RS�OZS!PS[\] _̂̀�ab�c̀a\d�_ecfc_]_egh�d̀aijk_k�ljgmje�nĵ f̀̀j_ho�fg�_pg_̀efn�i_e\_h�fek�aenje_qXrPW�OS��N�Y"stu�vwxyz{�N|Y "�

#%9, Page 28



����
������
���

���	���� �
�	���� ���	���� �
�	���� ���	���� �
�	�������
����

��������������

���	��������������
� !" # $%"&	#'$()	%"	*##'+&	,%)	!'"*	 "&'	-.%"" "!	%"/	/*. 0*+ "!	%	.%+!*	+%"!*	'#	%$& 0 & *)1	2'+3),'-)	%"/	*0*"&)	%#&*+	+*'-*" "!	 "	�*-&*45*+6	7 !,. !,&)	 "$.(/*8	9""(%.	#*)& 0%.)8	:''3;*)&	<$, ./+*"	=	#%4 . *)>1	?+')) "!	&,*	@**)	<%/(.&)>	%"/	A'$%.	7 )&'+B	C'"&,6	9	+%"!*	'#	)*)) '")	#'+	$, ./+*"	 "$.(/ "!	%"	*D$ & "!	%"/	0%+ */	)$,''.	,'. /%B	-+'!+%44*6	@,*	7 0*	$'"& "(*	&'	/*0*.'-	%$& 0 & *)1	2'+3),'-)	%"/	*0*"&)	(& . ) "!	&,*	"*2	/ ! &%.	*E( -4*"&6	@,*)*	'##*+	%	+%"!*	'#	,(!*.B	*D$ & "!	*D-*+ *"$*)	)($,	%)	C() $	F+'/($& '"1	G ! &%.	9+&1	%"/	/*) !" "!	HG	-+ "&%5.*I)6@,*+*	,%0*	5**"	JK	)$,''.	$.%))	0 ) &)	) "$*	+*'-*" "!1	*"!%! "!	'0*+	LMMM	-(- .)6

N����OPQ�R�PS�POT	S�	U�T	VWOPSX���Y�	S�	RS�OZS�PS[\] _̂̀	ab	c̀a\d	_ecfc_]_egh	fg	if̀jkecgae	lk̂ f̀̀mnXoPW�OS�	N�Y�pql	rstuvw	NxY���

@*D& Page 29



����
������
������

��	
���� ���
���� ��	
���� ���
���� ��	
���� ���
������
����

���
����

������

���
��������������
 !"#$%&'()
*&!$+,
%-"+$+,
.%&!'
/"
%00"!"*
1&'$23(
1"4%!$"'
0%!
%(*"!
-"%-("5
3+*
637"!2%(%&!'
0%!
3*&(7'8
6"
3('%
%00"!"*
!"3*$+,
,!%&-'
3+*
9",%
327$#$7$"'
0%!
2.$(*!"+8
:&7'$*"
%0
%-"+$+,
.%&!'
/"
."(*
!",&(3!
!.)4"7$4"'
0%!
-!"'2.%%(
2.$(*!"+
7%
'&--%!7
'-""2.
3+*
(3+,&3,"
*"#"(%-4"+78
;+
3**$7$%+
7%
7."
3<%#"
/"
.3#"
!"2"+7()
<",3+
'%4"
!",&(3!
307"!
'2.%%(
327$#$7$"'
0%!
2.$(*!"+
$+2(&*$+,
=%!"*%4
=&'7$+,
>34"'5
 .%7%,!3-.)5
'$+,$+,
3+*
2!307
327$#$7$"'8
?."'"
3!"
!$'$+,
$+
-%-&(3!$7)
3+*
"+2%&!3,"
-"%-("
7%
'73)
3+*
*/"((
0%!
(%+,"!
3+*
"+@%)
7."
2%44&+$7)
'-32"8
A'
7."
($<!3!)
$'
2(%'"
7%
'"#"!3(
'2.%%('
$7
."(-'
7%
-!%#$*"
3
'30"
3+*
/"(2%4$+,
'-32"
0%!
3
!3+,"
%0
3&*$"+2"'8

B����CDE�F�DG�DCH
G�
I�H
JKCDGL���M�
G�
FG�CNG�DGOPQRST
UV
WTUPX
SYWZWSQSY[\
Z[
]Û_ST[UY
̀aRTZTbcLdDK�CG�
B�M�]è
fghijk
BlM���

?"m7 Page 30



������
���������
������

���	���� �
�	���� ���	���� �
�	���� ���	���� �
�	������
����

��
����

�����

���	��������������
� !"	!"	# $	%&'($"#	)*+,$'	-.	$/*0&#!-)&%	!)#$'&0#!-)"	"$$)	&#	-*'	%!,'&'!$"1	2 !%"#	3$	 &4$	&%3&5"	-..$'$/	4!"!#"	#-	"0 --%"	&)/	)*'"$'!$"	#-	"*66-'#	%&)(*&($	&)/	%!#$'&057	&)/	4!"!#"	#-	# $	8$)#'$	.-'	9-0&%	:#*/!$"	#-	%$&')	+-'$	&,-*#	# $	%-0&%	&'$&7	# $	-6$)!)(	-.	� $	;!4$	 &"	6'$"$)#$/	&)	-66-'#*)!#5	#-	"*66-'#	"0 --%"	3!# 	:�<=1	>*'	"0 --%"	6&0?&($	3&"	6*'0 &"$/	,5	254$')7	@$!/	:#'$$#7	A-%&+7	;*++$'"?)-##7	B,,$57	=-3/$)7	</*0&#!-)	C!%%&($7	;$&%# .!$%/7	:#	B*(*"#!)$	&)/	8-'6-'&#!-)	@-&/	:0 --%"1	� $5	 &4$	#&?$)	6&'#	!)	C!'#*&%	@$&%!#5	3-'?" -6"	%$&')!)(	&,-*#	"*,D$0#"	.'-+	: &?$6$&'$	#-	C-%0&)-$"7	EF	/$"!()	&)/	6'!)#7	'-,-#!0"	&)/	%&"$'	0*##!)(1	B)$0/-#&%	.$$/,&0?	!"	.&)#&"#!01

G����HIJ�K�IL�IHM	L�	N�M	OPHILQ���R�	L�	KL�HSL�ILTUVWXY	Z[	X\U]̂_̀Zâb	̀a_XŶ]_̀ZacdQeIP�HL�	G�R�fgh	ijklmn	GoR���

�$p# Page 31



����
����
����

�	
����� ������� �	
����� ������� �	
����� �����������

����

����
����
����

����
������������������
 !"�#"$%�&'�#!"�("'#)"�*+)�,+-$.�/#01&"2�3+)4"1�1&**")"'#.5�10)&'6�#!"�-.+20)"�+*�7$).&'6#+'�,&8)$)59�$'23")&'6�"':0&)&"2�%$&'.5�#!)+06!�"%$&.�$'1�#".";!+'"�$;;+&'#%"'#29�80#�$.2+�#$4&'6�#!"�2")<&-"�#+�(+-4")#+'�,&8)$)5�#+�2$#&2*5�-02#+%")2�)":0"2#2�$2�%0-!�$2�;+22&8."=� !&2�3$2�$;;)"-&$#"1�85�-02#+%")2�$'1�3!"'�;.$''&'6�*0)#!")�$-#&<&#5�$'1�"<"'#2�*)+%�#!"�#"$%�3"�&'-.01"�(+-4")#+'�$2�$�<"'0"=�� !"5�$)"�'+3�8$-4�3+)4&'6�$#�7$).&'6#+'�,&8)$)5�$2�020$.�$'1�$8."�#+�+**")�&'�;")2+'�)":0"2#2=>����?@A�B�@C�@?D�C��E�D�FG?@CH���I��C��BC�?JC�@CKLMNOP�QR�OSTLUPOV�WUPOXYOW�YQ�YZO�[OSYPO�RQP�\QX]̂�_YLWUOVH̀a@G�?C��>�I�[b\�cdefgh�>iI���

 "j# Page 32



�������
���������
������

���	 ���� ���� ���� ���� ����	�

���
������

�		
��	


������������������������������������� !"#$ %&'
()*�+,-.*/�01�23/**3�4)5-670+2�)52�/72*+�.8�9:�0;*/�3)*�<523�8*5/�30�=>?@�()*�A**6�B/7357+�(7C8�D6/7+E�5+C�F,3,-+�G<*5+�3)*�H733*/�I/**�J,/)5-�5+C�J5/<7+E30+�45-657E+2�01�KLKM�5+C�KLKN�)5;*�5<<�/*2,<3*C�7+�+*O�;0<,+3**/2�27E+7+E�,6�52�D3/**3�G)5-670+2@�()*2*�45-657E+2�)5;*�*+40,/5E*C�03)*/�E/0,62P�10/�*Q5-6<*�(5<R7+E�S,3�()*�(/52)P�T5,E)30+�U0-.<*2P�V523.0,/+*�T,.2�5+C�()*�J*+*2�5+C�()*�U*<<P�5+C�E/0,62�53�D5C.*/E*P�T*7E)7+E30+�5+C�W7CC<*30+�D3�X*0/E*P�30�2*3�,6�/*E,<5/�<733*/�674R7+E�*;*+32�3)/0,E)0,3�3)*�8*5/P�O)74)�5/*�2,660/3*C�3)/0,E)�D3/**3�G)5-670+2@�D0-*�01�3)*2*�E/0,62�)*<6�7-6/0;*�3)*�-*+35<�)*5<3)�Y�O*<<.*7+E�10/�7+C7;7C,5<2P�O)0�)5C�.*40-*�2*<1Z720<53*C�C,/7+E�<04R�C0O+2@[ �� \]̂'_ àbcde�fcgh�ìjjkdcgclmn�]o�]\p�o��q'p�rs\]ot_uvwxyz�_x{|�}u~~�yx{x���{u�~��x~x���{|�xv��u{�y{x��$"'�'�o��no�\�o&]o��������������������������������������t�]s \o��[ �'������ ¡¢£�[¤�%'�

(*Q3 Page 33



����
����
��

��	
���� ���
���� ��	
���� ���
���� ��	
���� ���
�������
���

��� ���
������

���
�������������� 
!"#$
%&'()*+$,
-)*%"
.)/)
0&*
1213415
63789:;
/&
1211413
6379<9;7
/"#
/&/)=
$>'?#*
&0
0=@
/+(A
")B#
+$%*#)A#.
?@
9:CDE
6D1D;C
F')==
0=@
/+(A7
1213415
63725G;
)$.
1211413
6175<9;7
")B#
+$%*#)A#.
?@
11C5E
6DD8;
&B#*
/"#
(#*+&.7
=)*,#
0=@
/+(A7
1213415
6::G;
)$.
1211413
6822;7
")B#
.#%*#)A#.
?@
5C:E
631;H
=)*,#
(*&(&*/+&$
&0
A')==
0=@
/+(A
+A
A+.#
I)A/#7
(>/
&>/
()*/+%>=)*=@
+$
?)%J
=)$#A
)/
/"#
A)'#
/+'#
)A
*#0>A#
%&==#%/+&$C
H
A+,$+0+%)$/
(*&(&*/+&$
&0
/"#A#
0=@
/+(A
)*#
?#+$,
+.#$/+0+#.
)A
()*/
&0
/"#
?)%J
=)$#A
(*&K#%/7
I"+%"
+A
)%"+#B+$,
A>%%#AA
I+/"+$
/"#
)*#)A
+/
+A
&(#*)/+$,C
L$
)B#*),#
&B#*
/"#
@#)*
<DC5E
&0
0=@
/+(A
)*#
%&==#%/#.
I+/"+$
/)*,#/
/+'#
&0
?#+$,
*#(&*/#.C

M����NOP Q�OR�ONS
R�
T S
UVNORW�� X 
R�
QR�NYR�ORZ[\]̂
_̀abcd
[e
êfg\hij
dci[d\cklWmOV�NR�
M�X nop
qqrcstu
MvX� �

w#x/ Page 34



����
������
���

�� �� �� �� �� �� ������	�� ����	���
� ��� ��� ��� ��� ��
 ���
�
� 
�� ��� ��� ��� ��� �������������� ���������������� !�"#�#$%&'()*�! )"!' +�(,�-�.!' !/0123451678

9:;<=>�?@�A;BCC�@CD�EFGA�>?A=�FH�BCC�I:B>E=>A�?@�JKJLMJN�OP=H�Q?;GB>=R�E?�JKJJMJLS��T:B>E=>�U�VTUW�<D�JKJX�TJ�<D�NJX�TL�<D�ULYX�BHR�TN�<DUZ[S�\H�B]=>B̂=�_̀S̀a�?@�A;BCC�@CD�EFGA�O=>=�Q?CC=QE=R�OFEPFH�EB>̂=E�?@�Y�RBDAS��9:;<=>�?@�CB>̂=�@CD�EFGA�PBA�@BCC=H�FH�EP>==�?@�EP=�I:B>E=>A�R:>FĤ�JKJLMJN�OP=H�Q?;GB>=R�E?�JKJJMJLS��TU�@=CC�<D�JX�TJ�>?A=�<D�JKJX�TL�@=CC�<D�ZN�BHR�TN�@=CC�<D�NS�\H�B]=>B̂=�_NSJa�?@�CB>̂=�@CD�EFGA�O=>=�Q?CC=QE=R�OFEPFH�EB>̂=ES�b�C?Ĥ=>�EF;=�QBH�<=�>=I:F>=R�R:=�E?�EP=�Q?;GC=cFED�?@�EP=�Q?CC=QEF?H�BHR�>=I:F>=;=HE�@?>�AG=QFBC�>=A?:>Q=A�V=ŜS�BA<=AE?AWS��dHQ>=BA=R�@CDeEFGGFĤ�FA�R:=�E?�BRRFEF?HBC�>=G?>EFĤ�?@�AFR=�OBAE=�VQCBAA=R�BA�@CDeEFGGFĤW�<D�<?EP�fH@?>Q=;=HE�\@@FQ=>A�BHR�gF>=�h=>]FQ=S�\]=>BCCX�_YSNa�B>=�<=FĤ�>=;?]=R�OFEPFH�EP=�EF;=�AQBC=A�F>>=AG=QEF]=�?@�H:;<=>AS�i=HQ=X�EP=�BRRFEF?HBC�Q>=O�B@@?>R=R�E?�QC=B>FĤ�>=B>�CBH=A�FA�O?>jFĤ�E?�j==G�EP=;�QC=BH�k�EFRDS
l1001mno8pqr�st�suvv�wxyyz{|�t}zqz~u}��{zs|������ttyuq��|�t��z{zx������vt�q�0n�0nm���0��8����mn�����������p������������������538�8��0���0m��7n��� ¡¢£�¤¥�¥¦§̈©ª«¬�£¢«¤£©¢�ª®�̄�°£©¢£±�²n�1m�0�l1�8³�́ �µµ¶¥·̧¹�lº�680

»=cE Page 35



���
����
����
��

�	��
���	��
���	�	
���	�
�	
���� ������������ ��������

���������� ������� ���������� !"#!$%&'!�()�*(+,!*(-.�/&,%!�%*&%�0,�#(--!#%!.�%*&%�0,�!0%*!"�"!1234567849:;
<=>�?@ABCD�AE�F?GD>�D=?D�HG�I>JKJL>MN�JA@OAGD>M�AI�I>BG>M�=?G�E?LL>C�HC�I>J>CD�K>?IGN�D=>�PABCJHLQG�O>IEAI@?CJ>�RSTUVWX�HG�JBII>CDLK�HC�LHC>�FHD=�D=>�YAID=�Z?GD�RS[U\WX�?]>I?̂>N�_BD�_>LAF�D=>�ZĈL?CM�R̀aUaWX�?]>I?̂>U��bAIc�JACDHCB>G�DA�_>�BCM>ID?c>C�_K�dDI>>D�dJ>C>�?CM�JA@@BCHJ?DHAC�D>?@G�DA�HCJI>?G>�I>JKJLHĈ�?CM�I>MBJ>�JACD?@HC?DHACU�dD?EE�?I>�?LGA�FAIcHĈ�FHD=�D=>�C>F�F?GD>�JACDI?JDAI�DA�@?eH@HG>�D=>�?@ABCD�AE�@?D>IH?L�D=?D�HG�I>JA]>I>M�EIA@�I>GHMB?L�F?GD>�?CM�G>CD�EAI�I>JKJLHĈUf4334ghi;jkl�mn�mopp�qrsstuv�nwtktxow�yutmvz�{|�}nnsoky�vzn�{tutryz�~��pn�k�3h�3hg���3��;����gh�����������j������������������86;�;��3���3g��:h������������ ¡�¢ £¤�¢ ¥¦�§�¤����¢���̈¤�� ¥¥����¦��¢���̈¤��̈�¢�����£¤�¦©����ª�¥�¦� ��� «¬ ¤��¦�®h�4g�3�f4�;°̄±�²²³µ́¶�f·�9;3

<>eD Page 36



���
����
�����

����	�
����	��

����� ���������� ������������������������������� ������!�"�#��$���������������%�� ����"�&'()*+,-)./0
123�456738�9:�;6<==�:=>�?@A;�83A98?3B�9C38�?23�>3<8�@4D83<;3B�7>�EEF�?9�GHIJK�L234�D96A<83B�?9�MIMMNMGO�123�A38:986<4D3�9:�;?833?�D=3<4;@4P�?3<6;�836<@4;�D94;@;?34?=>�2@P2�L@?2�?23�<C38<P3�:98�MIMGNMJ�9:�QRORS�9:�;6<==�:=>�?@A;�8369C3B�L@?2@4�?23@8�?<8P3?�?@63H�L@?2�?23�6<T98@?>�73@4P�D9==3D?3B�@4�54B38�E�B<>;�L@?2�<�;@P4@:@D<4?�456738�@4�54B38�M�B<>;O�123�83B5D?@94�@4�A38:986<4D3�@4�U3A?36738�L<;�<;�<�83;5=?�9:�=@6@?3B�83;958D3;�<D89;;�?23�;38C@D3�?9�@4;A3D?�<4B�D9==3D?�:=>�?@A;OV)(()WXY0Z[\�]̂ �]_̀̀�abccdef�̂gd[dh_g�ied]fj�kl�m̂ ĉ_[i�fĵ�kdedbij�n�ò p̂[q(Xr(XWs�r(�t0s�uvWXrwxyz{|}x�~Zy�|}x�z}����oz}z��-+0�0�r(�qr(W�r/Xr���������������������������������������������������������������������������w�Xv)Wr(�V)�0 ¡¢�£¤¥¦§̈�V©�.0(

13ª? Page 37



���
����
�����

���	
�� ����
��

��� ������������������
������������������������������� �!�"�#��$������������ ��%�������"� &'()*+,-)./0
123�456738�9:�;<8=3�:;>�?@AB�83A98?3C�9D38�?23�>3<8�:3;;�B;@=2?;>�7>�EF�?9�GGH�I234�J96A<83C�?9�FKFFLFEM�123�A38:986<4J3�9:�B?833?�J;3<4B@4=�?3<6B�836<@4B�J94B@B?34?;>�2@=2�I@?2�?23�<D38<=3�:98�FKFELFN�9:�ONMFP�9:�;<8=3�:;>�?@AB�8369D3C�I@?2@4�?23@8�?<8=3?�?@63Q�;<8=38�@4J@C34?B�?<R3�;94=38�C53�?9�?23�J96A;3S@?>�9:�?23�@?36B�T3M=M�<B73B?9BU�?2<?�83V5@83�B@=4@:@J<4?�83B958J3BM�123�83C5J?@94�@4�A38:986<4J3�@4�W3A?36738�I<B�<B�<�83B5;?�9:�;@6@?3C�83B958J3B�<J89BB�?23�B38D@J3�?9�@4BA3J?�<4C�J9;;3J?�:;>�?@ABMX)(()YZ[0\]̂�_̀ �_abb�cdeefgh�̀if]fjai�kgf_hl�mn�ò èa]k�hl̀�mfgfdkl�p�qb̀r]s(Zt(ZYu�t(�v0u�wxYZtyz{|}~�z��\{�~�z�|�����q|�|��-+0�0�t(�st(Y�t/Zt�������������������������������������������������������������������������� y¡Zx)Yt(�X)�0¢£¤�¥¦¦§̈©�Xª�.0(

13S? Page 38



��
����
����

�������� 	
������ ������� �������� �������� 	
������ ����������
����

���������
����

������������ !�"#$
%&'('�&)*'�+'',�-.�/011'//203�234�56776,8�7(9/'10569,/�9*'(�-:-.;-<=�>6,'�?'('�29(�?&',�)�@6A'B�C',)354�&)B�7('*690/34�+'',�6//0'B�?&'5&'(�29(�D054�92�E)('�9(�@34F%67�),B�&)B�,95�+'',�7)6B�59�E6*63�C(91'//6,8=�G,�5&'/'�1)/'/H�)�/5)5'I',5�)39,8�?65&�5&'�'*6B',1'�92�,9,F7)4I',5�6/�/',5�59�J'8)3�59�+'�B')35�?65&�+4�5&'�E90(5/=��%&'�)BB6569,)3�K<�?'('�29(�5&'�L,*6(9,I',5�M15�KNNOH�P'1569,�KK:�922',1'=�%&6/�6/�),�922',1'�29(�)�7'(/9,�6,5',569,)334�59�9+/5(015�),�)05&9(6/'B�7'(/9,�6,�5&'�'A'(16/'�9(�7'(29(I),1'�92�&6/�79?'(/�9(�B056'/=��%&'�L,*6(9,I',5)3�E(6I'�E99(B6,)59(�598'5&'(�?65&�95&'(�E6*61�L,29(1'I',5�92261'(/�19,56,0'�59�'A739('�),B�6I73'I',5�)�(),8'�92�I')/0('/�59�5)1Q3'�5&'/'�7(9+3'I/�6,130B6,8�+6,�('I9*)3/H�3'55'(FB(97/�),B�1)I'()�',29(1'I',5�?&'('�16(10I/5),1'/�7'(I65=

R����STU$V�TW�TSX�W��Y$X�Z[STW\!�$]$�W��VW�ŜW#TW_̀ abcd�ef�gdehcìjkelh�fed�fmnojkggklpq\rT[�SW��R�]$s_t�uvwxyz�R{]"$�

%'A5 Page 39



���
����
�����

����	�
����	������	��
� ������ ��

��������������������������������������� !��"#$%&'($)*+
,-./�./�0�1233.45�0671057�871974:057�/9217�2;�:-7�<=�:104/79:/�.4/879:7>�;21�3.::71�7671?�2:-71�@24:-A�0/�>7;.47>�B?�:-7�C//29.0:.24�D21�EFB3.9�G716.97�HI97337497�J04>�CF>.:�K04057@74:�G?/:7@�510>.45�/?/:7@�04>�92671.45�033�L01>/�2;�:-7�B212F5-MN7;17/-71�:10.4.45�24�:-7�510>.45�2;�937043.47//�;21�.4/879:.24�/:0;;�-0/�:0O74�83097�2671�:-7�80/:�?701M�P:�-0/�.@81267>�:-7�.4/879:.24�81297//A�17/F3:.45�.4�@217�099F10:7�@70/F17@74:/MC4�0671057�2;�QR�-0/�B774�17921>7>�2671�:-7�30/:�;.67�.4/879:.24/�/.497�S267@B71�R=RTM�G:177:�G9747�-0/�924:.4F7>�:2�0//./:�L.:-�:-7�U.6.9�H4;2197@74:�B09O�3047�812V79:�L-.9-�.49218210:7/�3.::71�8.9O.45�2;�:-7�;124:�/:177:�0/�L733�0/�:-7�B09O�3047M

W$##$XYZ+[\]�̂_�̂ àa�bcddefg�_he\eih̀�jfê gk�lm�n__d̀\j�gk_�lefecjk�o�pa_q\r#Ys#YXt�s#�u+t�vwXYsxyz{|}~y��[z�}~y�{~����p{~{��(&+�+�s#�rs#X�s*Ys��������������������������������������������x�Yw$Xs#�W$�+�� �¡¢£¤¥¦�W§�)+#

,7I: Page 40



���
����
�����
���

���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ������	�
���	����	�

�	���	

���	������������������

���� !"�#$�!����%�&'�!%���&�("��))*�(+� !$*'' "*!,*-'*��./% !*%%� !%&*,$ (!%�$(�,0*,1�$0�$�./% !*%%*%���*�,()&'2 !"�3 $0�$��� !"�%$�!����%�'*" %'�$ (!4�%/&&(�$�$0*)� !$(�,()&' �!,*�30*�*�!*,*%%��2��!�� !5*%$ "�$*���*�%�(+�!(!-,()&' �!,*��%��*6/ �*�7��0*�!/).*��(+� !%&*,$ (!%4�)(%$'2�(!-&�*) %*%� !%&*,$ (!%4�&'�!!*���!��,()&'*$*���/� !"�898:-8;�3�%�<=�>?99@A7��0*�5�%$�)�B(� $2�>C=@A�(+�$0*�5 % $%�3*�*�,��� *��(/$�.*+(�*�#*&$*).*��898;7��0*��*)� !�*��(+�5 % $%�3*�*�&� !, &�''2�*D&'(% 5*%�%$(��"*� !%&*,$ (!%�$(�,0*,1�(!�+ �*3(�1�%$(��"*�30 ,0�3*�*�,��� *��(/$��/� !"�$0*�&*�) $$*��%�'*%�&*� (���!��3*�*�%,0*�/'*��+(��'�$*�E,$(.*���!��*��'2�F(5*).*�7�G''�$0*�0 "0-� %1� !%&*,$ (!%��*,* 5*����,()&' �!,*�,0*,1�5 % $7�H%%/*%� �*!$ + *���/� !"� !%&*,$ (!�0�5*�* $0*��.**!�,(��*,$*�� ))*� �$*'2�(���*5 % $%��!��+/�$0*����5 ,*�" 5*!7
I����JKL�M�KN�KJO�N��P�O�QRJKNS���T��N��MN�JUN�KNVWXYZ[\�]̂X[YXWY_̀�abWcb[̂X\b�de�fZ\f�WZ_g�Z[_hbĉZd[_�cXWWZbY�dîjSkKR�JN��I�T�lmn�opqrst�IuT���

�*D$ Page 41



�����
�������

��	
���� ��
���� ��	
���� ��
���� ��	
���� ��
����
���� �����������	���� ��	�� �����
�������
 ! "#$%&'($)*+

,-.
/.01.2345.
67
262870.9:.23
;:<
<.0=>1.<
0:22>25
62
3>?.
><
26
@625.0
0./603.A
;B
C43>624@
D343><3>1<
43
@614@
4:3-60>3B
@.=.@
;:3
760
3-.
,..<
E4@@.B
F6?;>2.A
G:3-60>3BH
,-.
7>5:0.
760
3-.
B.40
.2A>25
I401-
JKJL
M4<
NNO
62
3>?.HP614@
A434
<://@>.A
A>0.13@B
;B
G00>=4
<-6M<
3-43
3-.
JKJLQJRS
3-.
4=.045.
/:213:4@>3B
-4<
;..2
TUHVLO
W62
3>?.X
4106<<
<.0=>1.<
6/.043>25
>2
Y40@>25362HY40@>25362
Z606:5-
F6:21>@
1623>2:.
36
M60[
M>3-
,..<
E4@@.B
F6?;>2.A
G:3-60>3B
42A
;:<
6/.04360<S
36
A.@>=.0
>?/06=.?.23<
36
;:<
/0>60>3BS
3-06:5-
3-.
Z:<
\2-421.A
]4032.0<->/H

,-><
>21@:A.<
/@422.A
>2704<30:13:0.
42A
0̂;42
,0477>1
I4245.?.23
F62306@
>?/06=.?.23<
62
[.B
;:<
/0>60>3B
1600>A60<
>2
Y40@>25362H
_$##$̀ab+c#ad#àe
d#
f+e
gh̀adi(&+j+
d#
cd#̀kd*adlmn
ompqrmsturvw
oxyqxprszx
{|
p{p}|yx~mxpr
�mn
nxy�uqxn
ymppupz
{p
ru�x�i�ah$̀d#
_$j+���
������
_�j)+#

,.�3 Page 42



��
��
�

���� ���� ���� ����
��� ���

���
���

�	
����� ���	� ��
����	�������������� �!�"��"!�#����$%�&'����(�"���������%'�)#$�*����+,-./012.345
678�98:7;<�=>8<�:;�8>:?@AB>7�:78�9?BC:8C?CD8�C88<>�;E�:78�7BF7G?H�C8:G;IJ�7?>�D7?CF8<�EI;9�?C�?=:;9?:8<�>=IK8H�=>BCF�?�LMNOOPQ�K87BDA8�:;�?�KB>=?A�NCC=?A�PCFBC88IBCF�RC>S8D:B;CT�678�>=IK8H�SI;KB<8>�:78�UBF7G?H�N>>8:�V?C?F898C:�GB:7�:I8?:98C:�>8A8D:B;C�BCE;I9?:B;C�:;�?>>B>:�GB:7�:78�SA?CCBCF�;E�EBK8WH8?I�7BF7G?H>�9?BC:8C?CD8�>D7898>T�678�XYXZ[X\�BC>S8D:B;C�EBF=I8�B>�]TX̂ �;E�SIBCDBS?A�I;?<>�C88<BCF�D;C>B<8I?:B;C�E;I�9?BC:8C?CD8T�_=8�:;�:78�D7?CF8�BC�98:7;<̀�:7B>�<?:?�B>�C;:�D;9S?I?@A8�GB:7�SI8KB;=>�H8?I>T��aK8I�:78�S?>:�H8?I�9?BC:8C?CD8�G?>�D?IIB8<�;=:�?:�:78�E;AA;GBCF�:G;�N�Q;?<�>D7898>̀�b88:7?9>�Q;=C<?@;=:�?C<�V8IIH@8C:̀�?�:;:?A�I;?<�A8CF:7�;E�YTcJ9Td.--.efg5hij�kl�kmnn�opqqrst�lurirvmu�wsrktx�yz�{llqmiw�txl�yrsrpwx�|�}i�txl�vr~l�-f�-fe���-��5����ef����}������h������}������}�}��205�5��-���-e��4f��������������� �¡��¡ �¢����£¤�¥¦����§�¡���������¤¦�̈¢£�©�����¤¡£���£�ª«��¢�¤¤¬�®f�.e�-�d.�5°̄��±²²³́µ�d¶�35-

68·: Page 43



��
��
�

���� ���� ���� ����

��	 
�������� 
��
��������� ������� ���������������� !��"#��"�$%�&��&% '��" ()�*+����, &���� ����)+"-'(�./01234562789

:;<�=<>;?@�AB<@�>?�<B>CDEFB;�>;<�=CFG><GCGH<�G<<@B�?I�>;<�;FJ;KCL�G<>K?MN�;CB�H;CGJ<@�IM?=�CG�CA>?=C><@�BAMO<L�ABFGJ�C�PQRSSTU�O<;FHE<�>?�C�OFBACE�RGGACE�TGJFG<<MFGJ�VGBW<H>F?GX�:;<�BAMO<L�WM?OF@<B�>;<�YFJ;KCL�RBB<>�ZCGCJ<=<G>�KF>;�>M<C>=<G>�B<E<H>F?G�FGI?M=C>F?G�>?�CBBFB>�KF>;�>;<�WECGGFGJ�?I�IFO<[L<CM�;FJ;KCLB�=CFG><GCGH<�BH;<=<BX��:;<�\]\̂_\̀�FGBW<H>F?G�IFJAM<�FB�̀Xab�?I�G?G[WMFGHFWCE�M?C@B�G<<@FGJ�H?GBF@<MC>F?G�I?M�=CFG><GCGH<X��cO<M�>;<�WCB>�L<CM�=CFG><GCGH<�KCB�HCMMF<@�?A>�?G�BFd�e�f�Q�U?C@�BH;<=<Bg�JFOFGJ�C�>?>CE�M?C@�E<GJ>;�?I�\X̂N=Xh2112ijk9lmn�op�oqrr�stuuvwx�pyvmvzqy�{wvox|�}~��ppuqm{�x|p�}vwvt{|����m�x|p�zv�p�1j�1ji���1��9����ij�����������l������������������649�9��1���1i��8j�������� ¡��¢£��¢�¤¥�¦��¦¥ §��¢ ̈©�ª«����¬ ¦���� ����©«¢§̈�®���¢�©¦̈���̈�̄°� �̈�±��§ ©©²³�́j�2i�1�h2�9µ±��¶·¶¹̧º�h»�791

:<d> Page 44



��
����
����

���� ���� ���� ����
���� ����

��	
���	����


�������� ������ ������������������ !"#$%!&'(
)*+�,+-*./�01+/�-.�+1-23451*�-*+�,256-+6267+�6++/1�.8�-*+�*59*:2;�6+-:.<=�*21�7*269+/�8<.,�26�20-.,2-+/�10<>+;�01569�2�?@ABBCD�>+*574+�-.�2�>51024�A66024�C6956++<569�E61F+7-5.6G�)*+�10<>+;�F<.>5/+1�-*+�H59*:2;�A11+-�I2629+,+6-�:5-*�-<+2-,+6-�1+4+7-5.6�568.<,2-5.6�-.�21151-�:5-*�-*+�F4266569�.8�85>+J;+2<�*59*:2;1�,256-+6267+�17*+,+1G��)*+�KLKMNKO�561F+7-5.6�8590<+�51�OGPQ�.8�0674211585+/�<.2/1�6++/569�7.615/+<2-5.6�8.<�,256-+6267+G��R>+<�-*+�F21-�;+2<�,256-+6267+�:21�72<<5+/�.0-�.6�MP�S674211585+/�D.2/�17*+,+1T�95>569�2�-.-24�<.2/�4+69-*�.8�KGO=,GU!  !VWX(Y WZ WV[�Z �\([�]̂VWZ_%#(̀ (�Z �YZ VaZ'WZbcdecfghic�jk�lfemhnnokocp�djhpn�qrcdc�shofgcfhfec�nrjlmp�tc�ejfnopcdcpu_vŴ!VZ �U!̀ (wxb�yz{|}~�U�̀ &( 

)+�- Page 45



�����
������

���� ���� ���� ���� ����
�� ����

�� ��
	
�������������������������
�������
�������������������� !"#$ %&'
()*+�*+�,-�,--.,/�*-0*1,234�5,+60�3-�2)6�7879:7;�1,/6-0,4�<6,4=�()6�0,2,�*+�13//61260�2)43.>)�?.4),@�A3/*16�B*,�2)6�C2,2+�DE�46F342*->�+<+26@=��G*>.46+�H34�7879�+)3I�,�06146,+6�3B64�7877�,/2)3.>)�,-�*-146,+6�3B64�7878:7D=��J3I6B64K�7878:7D�*+�,�+2,2*+2*1,/�3.2/*64�0.6�23�2)6�*@F,12�3H�L3B*0:DE�3-�24,HH*1�/6B6/+�MDNO�3H�-34@,/�24,HH*1�/6B6/+�,2�*2+�/3I6+2P=��C*-16�7878�24,HH*1�/6B6/+�),B6�4613B6460�23�+*@*/,4�B3/.@6+�23�2),2�46134060�*-�78DE�F4*34�23�L3B*0:DE=G*>.46+�H34�7879�+)3I�,�06146,+6�5,+60�3-�F46:F,-06@*1�24,HH*1�0,2,�,-0�B3/.@6+=QH�2)6�9R�S*//60�34�+64*3.+/<�*-T.460�3-�3.4�43,0+�*-�7879K�2)646�I646�9�H,2,/*2*6+=

U �� VWX'YZ[�\]�\̂__�̀abbcde�]fcZcgf̂�hdc\ei�jk�l]]b̂Zh�ei]�jcdcahi�m�nop]q�Wr�WVs�r��t's�uvVWrwxyz{|}x�~Yy�|}x�z}�n���z}z��$"'�'�r��qr�V�r&Wr��������������������������������������������������������������������������������w�Wv Vr��U �' ¡¢�£¤¤¥¦§�Ü �%'�

(6©2 Page 46



���
������

���� ���� ���� ���� ����
���

���� ��� ��
	
������������������������
������������������������� !"#$%&"'()
*+,-�,-�./�.//0.1�,/2,3.456�7.-82�5/�4+8�9:9;<9=�3.18/2.6�>8.6?�*+8�2.4.�,-�351183482�4+650@+�A06+.B�C51,38�D,.�4+8�E4.4-�FG�68H564,/@�->-48B?��A.4.�I56�9:9;�-+5J-�.�28368.-8�5D86�9:9:<99�28-H,48�46.II,3�D510B8-�6835D86,/@�45�-,B,1.6�18D81-�45�4+.4�68356282�,/�9:FG�H6,56�45�K5D,2<FG�-+5J,/@�.�25J/J.62�468/2�-,/38�4+8�H./28B,3?�L.-82�5/�4+8�>8.6-�H6,56�45�K5D,2<FGM�J8�.68�-4,11�-88,/@�.�-07-4./4,.1�682034,5/�J,4+�.33,28/4-�+.1D,/@M�./2�4+,-�18D81�,-�-,@/,I,3./41>�7815J�4+8�7.-81,/8?N8�35/4,/08�45�,/D8-4�,/�65.2�-.I84>�8203.4,5/�./2�4+650@+�506�O53.1�*6./-H564�C1./M�J8�35/4,/08�45�,/D8-4�,/�-H882�B./.@8B8/4�./2�3.-0.14>�682034,5/�-3+8B8-?

P"!!"QRS)TUV�WX�WYZZ�[\]]̂ _̀�XâÛbYa�c_̂Ẁd�ef�gXX]YUc�̀dX�ê _̂\cd�h�ijkXl!Rm!RQn�m!�o)n�pqQRmrstuvwxs�yTtzwxs{ux|i�}~uxu��&$)�)�m!�lm!Q�m(Rm���������������������������������������������������������������������r�Rq"Qm!�P"�)����� ¡¢£¤�P¥�')!

*8¦4 Page 47



���
���
�

���� ���� ���� ���� ����
�

�
�

�
�

	
����������������������������
�������
������������������ !"#$%!&'(
)*+,�+,�-.�-../-0�+.1+2-345�6-,71�4.�3*7�898:;8<�2-07.1-5�=7-5>�)*7�1-3-�+,�240072371�3*54/?*�@/5*-A�B40+27�C+-�3*7�D3-3,�EF�57G453+.?�,=,37A>��@-3-�H45�898:�,*4I,�-�17257-,7�4C75�8988�17,G+37�35-HH+2�C40/A7,�5724C75+.?�34�,+A+0-5�07C70,�34�3*-3�57245171�+.�89EF�G5+45�34�J4C+1;EF>K-,71�4.�3*7�=7-5,�G5+45�34�J4C+1;EFL�I7�-57�-3�-�04I75�07C70�I*+2*�H-00,�6704I�3*7�6-,70+.7>��)*757�*-C7�677.�.4�2*+01�H-3-0+3+7,�,+.27�89E:>)*54/?*�4/5�M42-0�)5-.,G453�B0-.L�I7�24.3+./7�34�+.C7,3�+.�,G771�A-.-?7A7.3�-.1�2-,/-03=�571/23+4.�,2*7A7,>>

N!  !OPQ(RST�UV�UWXX�YZ[[\]̂�V_\S\̀ W_�a]\Ûb�cd�eVV[WSa�̂bV�c\]\Zab�f�ghiVj Pk POl�k �m(l�noOPkpqrstuvq�wRrxuvqysvzg�{|svs}~%#(�(�k �jk O�k'Pk����������������������������������������������������������������������������������p�Po!Ok �N!�(�������� ¡�N¢�&( 

)7£3 Page 48



���������	

������������������������������������������������������ ���!��"����#�����������$������������%������&����$�����''��������#����$�������$�$������������#����������&(����)�%��&(�'����*�!��+��&�,���������$�����$�������������!��-������������������������������.����*����������$���.�#���������������#��*������/��������.��������������������������&�!������&���������������������������������*'�����#�)�%��&(�������##����%����0&/1��#����*������##����%������������$���2!��3������������##����%������%������%���������*����%���*������������������������&(!

4����567
89:�;<�;=>>�?@AABCD�<EB9BF=E�GCB;DH�IJ�K<<A=9G�DH<�IBCB@GH�L�MNO<P�6Q�65R�Q��S
R�TU56QVWXYZ[\W�]8X̂[\W_Y\̀M�abY\Ycd��
e
�Q��PQ�5fQ	6Qghijkl�mn�opqrslkt�urqvpwrx�qtyhlks�qt�lmzs�wlznnqo�zooqsktwu�{ztthzr|}V~6U�5Q��4�e
�����������4�e�
�

���� Page 49



���
����

���� ���� ���� ���� ����
���� ����	���	
�� �
�� 	���		��	
�� 	���	
����������� ������������������������� !"�#$$%&'()*+',-.

/01�234567�89:68;97:6<=�83>?1@�>1835:8�9>1�:9A1=�;><B�9�83>?1@�7<=C37:1C�4@�:01�D9:6<=95�E6F0G9@8�9=C�/>9=82<>:�D1:G<>AH�9=�<>F9=689:6<=�G0<�2><?6C1�9�>9=F1�<;�41=70B9>A6=F�81>?6718�:<�I<795�J3:0<>6:618K�/01�<?1>955�234567�89:68;97:6<=�G6:0�234567�:>9=82<>:�098�>1C371C�;><B�LMN�6=�OPOO�:<�LON�6=�OPOQK�/068�68�415<G�:01�E6F0G9@8�9=C�/>9=82<>:�D1:G<>A�9?1>9F1�<;�955�:01�93:0<>6:618�:9A6=F�29>:�<;�RPNKS<>A�G655�41�3=C1>:9A1=�<?1>�:01�7<B6=F�@19>�:<�:>@�9=C�>16=8:9:1�7<=;6C1=71�:0><3F0�9�438�81>?671�6B2><?1B1=:�259=�9=C�29>:=1>8062�922><970K��/068�G655�6=753C1�:01�6=:><C37:6<=�<;�9�;59:�;9>1�9>>9=F1B1=:�;<>�T=C1>�OOU8H�1517:>67�43818�<=�81>?671�O�VW>9=A8<B1XY1C�E955Z�9=C�9�>1?61G�<;�8322<>:1C�438�81>?6718�:<�1=83>1�:09:�:01�=11C8�<;�:0<81�:>9?1556=F�6=�[9>56=F:<=�9>1�416=F�B1:K/118�\9551@�]<B46=1C�J3:0<>6:@�9>1�:01�I<795�/>9=82<>:�J3:0<>6:@�>182<=86451�;<>�234567�:>9=82<>:�9=C�:01�]<3=765�G655�7<=:6=31�:<�G<>A�6=�29>:=1>8062�:<�8:11>�6=?18:B1=:�6=:<�234567�:>9=82<>:�6=�[9>56=F:<=�:<�6B2><?1�89:68;97:6<=�51?158K
'̂&&'_̀a.b&̀c&̀_d�c&�e.d�fg_̀ch+).i.�c&�bc&_jc-̀cklmnopp�qrsptu�vowtxyouwtz{�|tw}�qrsptu�~no{x�znw�~}m�m���owtz{op��t�}|o�x�o{��~no{x�znw�vrnlm���h�̀g'_c&�̂'i.~�q��������̂�i,.&

/1�: Page 50



 

 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
29 AUGUST 2024  
  

 
STRONGER COMMUNITIES FUND 

 

 

SUMMARY REPORT 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1.  To provide Members with information on the spend and use of the Stronger Communities 
Fund (SCF) during the 2023/2024 financial year. 

 
Summary 
 

2.  Cabinet agreed the establishment of the Stronger Communities Fund in April 2021.  The 

fund, which is held by the Credit Union, allows Councillors to use an allocated amount of 
money (£1,000) per annum to deliver the objectives of the Fund.    

 
3. This report sets out the spend against the £50,000 for the 2023/24 financial year, together 

with information on what has been delivered in wards on an individual Councillor basis 
(Appendix 1). 

 
 

Recommendation 
 

4. Members are requested to note the final spend against the £50,000 for the 2023/24 
financial year 

 
Councillor Dr Amanda Riley 

Stronger Communities Portfolio 
 

Background Papers 
 

No background papers were used in the preparation of this report other than those referred to.   
 
Shirley Wright: Extension 5998 

Page 51

Agenda Item 5



 

 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
Council Plan The report contributes towards the Council Plan through Members 

allocation of the Stronger Community Fund. The Stronger Community Fund 

might contribute to ‘Communities’ – Working together for safer, healthier 
and more engaged communities’ and ‘Local Environment’ – A well-

connected, clean and sustainable borough.  
Addressing inequalities  The report does not contain any proposals that impact on diversity issues. 

Tackling Climate Change There are no specific carbon impact issues in this report. 
Efficient and effective use 

of resources 
The report contains updated information regarding efficiency savings 
contained in the MTFP. 

Health and Wellbeing There are no issues relating to health and well being which this report 
needs to address. 

S17 Crime and Disorder There are no specific crime and disorder implications in this report. 
Wards Affected All wards are affected. 
Groups Affected No specific groups are particularly affected. 
Budget and Policy 

Framework  
This decision does not represent a change to the budget and policy 
framework. 

Key Decision The report does not require a key decision. 
Urgent Decision The report does not require an urgent decision. 

Impact on Looked After 
Children and Care 

Leavers 

This report has no impact on Looked After Children or Care Leavers  

 

 

Page 52



 

 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
MAIN REPORT 

 
Information and Analysis 
 
5.  Following the establishment of the Stronger Communities Fund by Cabinet in April 2021, 

each Councillor is allocated £1,000 with the aim of :- 
 
(a)   supporting individuals and groups to enhance access to opportunities to improve 

health and wellbeing outcomes;  
 

(b) investing in environmental improvements that enhance the local area to the benefit 
of the local community. 

 
6. Prior to the allocation of the funding, each Member is required to enter into an agreement 

with the Council (Appendix 2) regarding the use of the funds which, amongst other things, 
stipulates that :- 

 
(a) the process of awarding grants is open and transparent 

(b) grants are made without prejudice or favour 
(c) the funds will not be used for Members’ personal or political gain  

(d) Members will be responsible for ensuring as far as possible that the grant has been 
used for the purpose that it was provided  

 
7. Appendix 1 sets out the final spend against the £50,000 for the 2023/24 financial year, 

together on what has been delivered within wards on an individual Councillor basis.  
 

8. There has been good use of the spend, with only £3700.30 of the £50,000 remaining 
unspent which has been reclaimed by the Council. 

 

2024/25 Fund 
 

9. Council, as part of the Medium-Term Financial Plan, agreed to support the continuation of 
the Stronger Communities Fund in 2024/25, however, all applications are now required to 

be authorised by the Monitoring Officer to ensure there are no potential conflicts of 
interest and that the fund is being allocated in accordance with the aim of the scheme. 

 
10. Members have been provided with the 2024/25 Agreement to sign and return (Appendix 

3) and funding is now being allocated and will be reported to this Scrutiny Committee in 
January 2025. 

 
 

 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL#

Stronger Communities Fund 

Grant Information 

Ward Councillor
Signed Agreement

Recipient - Name of Group Purpose of Grant Date Grant Awarded Amount Allocated (£) Amount Remaining (£) Agreement letter Returned
CU Account empty Receipt Recd

Bank Top and Lascelles Andrew Anderson Y 700 Club Towards Christmas Shop and Meal 11-Aug-2023 500.00 11/08/23 11/09/23

London Hearts
DHSC Public Access Defibrillator and Locked Cabinet for the Eastbourne Park 

Community Hub 11-Jan-2024 250.00 04/12/23
24/01/24

Bank Top and Lascelles Helen Crumbie Y
London Hearts 

DHSC Public Access Defibrillator and Locked Cabinet for the Eastbourne Park 

Community Hub 11-Jan-2024 250.00 04/12/23
24/01/24

Eastbourne Community Club Towards Garden equipement. 20-Mar-2024 272.00

Bank Top and Lascelles David Ray Y
London Hearts

DHSC Public Access Defibrillator and Locked Cabinet for the Eastbourne Park 

Community Hub 11-Jan-2024 250.00 04/12/23
24/01/24

Cleveland Sports and Social Club Towards the installation of a War Memorial 12-Dec-2023 476.00 07/03/24 07/03/24

Brinkburn and Faverdale Rebecca Baker Y London Hearts To install 2 x Defibs - Pricing still tbc 450.00 22/03/24 25/03/24

Installation for defib 126.00
Brinkburn and Faverdale David Beckett Y London Hearts To install 2 x Defibs - Pricing still tbc 450.00 22/03/24 25/03/24

Installation for defib 126.00
Brinkburn and Faverdale Scott  Durham Y Darlington Disability Association To support the Youth Club 12-Mar-2024 1000.00 / 15/03/24

Cockerton Jan Cossins Y
Cockerton Community and Business 

Group To purchase banners for the cockerton area to help with nuisance parking 21-Feb-2024 62.86 25/02/24
27/02/24

Cockerton Community and Business 

Group Towards Solar christmas lights to benefit the commuity. 21-Mar-2024 137.14 22/03/24

Holy Family School Towards the Nurture Group 18-Mar-2024 200.00

GOLD Towards the cost of seating for the GOLD Tea Dance 18-Mar-2024 200.00 22/03/24

Darlington Academy of Performing 

Arts Towards costumes for the shows, 18-Mar-2024 200.00 22/03/24
22/03/24

St Marys Primary School Towards equipement for an extra-curricular club 18-Mar-2024 200.00 / 20/03/24 21/03/24

Cockerton Cockerton Business Club

To support a young peoples activity programme (in partnership with CBG and 

Cockerton Band and Institute)

300.00

10/12/23 Y Email rec'd

Cockerton Business Club

To support the Christmas decorations and activities around the ‘village’ this 

year 300.00 10/12/23
Email rec'd

St Mary's Food Bank To support the Food Bank 400.00 / 11/10/23 11/10/23

Cockerton Neil Johnson Y Cockerton Business Club To support Christmas activites in Cockerton 12-Dec-2023 300.00 12/12/23 14/12/2023

College Bryony Holroyd Y Queen Elizabeth Drama Group To assit with lighting equipment 12-May-2023 500.00 12/08/23 08/12/23

Queen Elizabeth College Towards a Christmas Community Event 12-Dec-2023 250.00

Park Benches for College Ward To purchase benches to benefit College Ward 15-Feb-2024 250.00 / / 14/03/24

College Matthew Snedker Y Darlington Community Carnival
To support the carnival and to support the craft activities for young people. 22-Jan-2024 250.00

25/01/24 26/01/24

Park Benches for College Ward To purchase benches to benefit College Ward 15-Feb-2024 566.90 / 14/03/24

13th Darlington Scout Group To benefit the group. 8-Apr-2024 140.00

Covering Shortfall for Cllr Mammolotti and Robinson 42.80 05/04/24

Maidendale Nature and Fishing ReserveTo install 6 stone boulders to be utilised for seating around the nature reserve 31-Aug-2023 370.32
Y

£400 allocated £29.68 ret'd

Eastbourne Jonathan Dulston Y Bravehearts To support Christmas concert in Darlington 27-Nov-2023 500.00                          Y 28/11/2023

Maidendale Nature and Fishing 

Reserve To support the running costs and improvements to the Nature Reserve 12-May-2023 100.00
                         Y 08/12/23

N-Gage Learning Goup To buy boxing equipment for the club 10-Jan-2024 400.00 / 12/08/23                          Y 22/01/24

Eastbourne Kevin Nicholson Y Firthmoor Community Association Towards the Friends of Geneva Road Cemetery 10-Jan-2024 1000.00 / 10/01/24                          Y 22/01/24

Harrowgate Hill Roz Henderson Y Friends of Drinkfield Marsh To repair the path on the side of the marsh 16-Jan-2024 250.00 15/01/24 24/01/24

A Tombling Towards room hire, materials and tutor time for Art Therapy Clasess 16-Feb-2024 400.00 22/02/24 23/02/24

Salters Community Garden Towards the maintenance of the Garden space. 12-Mar-2024 350.00 / 15/03/24 20/03/24

Harrowgate Hill Richard Lawley Y Whessoe Parish Council To support xmas and summer fayre 11-Sep-2023 445.00 11/09/23 13/11/2-23

Darlington Allstars Football Club To install barriers for the football matches. 27-Feb-2024 555.00 / 01/03/24 07/03/24

Harrowgate Hill Anna-Maria Toms Y The Gateway Club Towards events of their choosing  28-Feb-2024 300.00 22/03/24

The Darlington Armed Forces Veteran 

Club
Towards events and purchases of their choosing 5-Mar-2024 300.00 11/03/24 12/03/24

St Marks Church Friendship Cafe To support their Cafe 28-Feb-2024 300.00 22/03/24

Cruse To support their services across town 28-Feb-2024 100.00 06/03/24 07/03/24

Haughton and Springfield Chris McEwan Y Salvation Food Army To support the Food Bank 21-Dec-2023 333.33 29/01/24 08/02/24

St Andrews Food Bank To support the Food Bank 21-Dec-2023 333.34 30/01/24 08/02/24

Haughton School Towards Student Support 21-Dec-2023 333.33 / 30/01/24 08/02/24

Haughton and Springfield Dawn Storr Y Salvation Food Army To support the Food Bank 21-Dec-2023 333.33 29/01/24 08/02/24

St Andrews Food Bank To support the Food Bank 21-Dec-2023 333.33 30/01/24 08/02/24

Haughton School Towards Student Support 21-Dec-2023 333.34 / 30/01/24 08/02/24

Haughton and Springfield Nick Wallis Y Salvation Food Army To support the Food Bank 21-Dec-2023 333.34 29/01/24 08/02/24

St Andrews Food Bank To support the Food Bank 21-Dec-2023 333.33 30/01/24 08/02/24

Haughton School Towards Student Support 21-Dec-2023 333.33 / 30/01/24 08/02/24

Heighington and Coniscliffe Paul Crudass Y High Coniscliffe Parish Council Provision of tools, equpiments and services towards the garden. 18-Mar-2024 1000.00
Heighington and Coniscliffe Gerald Lee Y Heighington Parish Council To purchase new play area equipment 10-Mar-2023 1000.00 / 03/102023 Y E-mail Rec'd

Hummersknott Kate Mammolotti Y
Park Benches for Hummersknott Ward To purchase benches to benefit Hummersknott ward 14-Mar-2024 1000.00

Hummersknott Thomas Robinson Y Stanhope Players Towards equipment and costumes for the production of 12th night 23-Nov-2023 250.00 21/11/23 23/11/23

Park Benches for Hummersknott Ward To purchase benches to benefit Hummersknott ward 14-Mar-2024 750.00
Hurworth Lorraine Tostevin Y Hurworth Grange To support the Community Fair and to supply the music for the fair 12-Mar-2024 1000.00 / 13/03/24

Hurworth Scout Group To contribute to a new scout hut 500.00 10/02/23 E-mail Rec'd

Hurworth Albion Junior Football Club Towards the purchase/replacement of equipment 300.00
06/02/24

Mustard Tree Cafe To purchase any necessary items for the cafe 12-Feb-2024 200.00 / 23/02/24 23/02/24

Mowden Pauline Culley Y Marchbank School Towards the supply and installation of a greenhouse 8-Feb-2024 600.00 08/02/24 Y 12/02/24

1st Darlington Brownies Towards Rent and Day trip 20-Feb-2024 400.00 / 21/02/24 21/02/24

Mowden Alan Marshall Y Marchbank School Towards the supply and installation of a greenhouse 8-Feb-2024 600.00 08/02/24 Y 12/02/24

Hurworth Paul Walters Y

Jim Garner Y

Eastbourne Joe Dillon Y

P
age 55



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL#

1st Darlington Brownies Towards Rent and Day trip 20-Feb-2024 400.00 / 21/02/24 21/02/24

North Road Hilary Allen y Menshed Group Towards room rent 12-Feb-2024 173.33 14/02/24 21/02/24

North Riverside Residents Association Towards a new shed and compost supplies 18-Mar-2024 156.67 22/03/24

Papercraft Group Towards craft materials 27/02/24 192.07 29/02/24

Arts and Crafts Group - Havelock Centre Towards the equipment for the group 12/03/24 477.93 /
North Road James Coe Y Menshed Group Towards room rent 12-Feb-2024 173.33 14/02/24 21/02/24

North Riverside Residents Association Towards a new shed and compost supplies 18-Mar-2024 156.67 22/03/24

Papercraft Group Towards craft materials 27-Feb-2024 192.06 29/02/24 29/02/24

Games and Sports Group - Havelock Centre Towards new games and furniture/equipment 12-Mar-2024 477.93 /
North Road Anne-Marie Curry Y Menshed Group Towards room rent 12-Feb-2024 173.34 14/02/24 21/02/24

North Riverside Residents Association Towards a new shed and compost supplies 18-Mar-2024 156.66 22/03/24

Papercraft Group Towards rent, materials and Insurance cover 27-Feb-2024 192.07 29/02/24 29/02/24

Richard Court Residents Association Towards supplies for the group 12-Mar-2024 477.93 /

Northgate Sajna Ali Y
Focussed Fitness Towards running costs of commuity gym project and replacement equipment 15-Dec-2023 500.00 18/12/2023

Y 19/12/2023

Babuls Restaurant Towards 8th Feed the Need Christmas Dinner 21-Dec-2023 500.00 / 21/12/2023 Y 21/12/23

Northgate Sonia Kane Y
Focussed Fitness Toards runnig costs of commuity gym project and replacement equipment 15-Dec-2023 500.00 18/12/2023

19/12/2023

13th Darlington Scouts Towards the latest fundraising mission 12-Mar-2024 500.00 / 13/03/24 15/03/24

Park East Libby McCollom Y Scout Group 1000.00
Park East Michael Nicholson Y St Columbas Church Christmas Concert.  Costs towards the Band 28-Nov-2023 100.00 28/11/2023 E-mail rec'd

Gold Christmas Party 28-Nov-2023 150.00 29/11/2023 19/12/2023

Skerne Park Youth and Community CentreTowards a bus trip for local residents 28-Nov-2023 200.00 12/11/23
12/12/23

Borough Road Nursery School Towarded the renovation of the garden room 2-Feb-2024 550.00 / 09/02/24
28/02/24

Park East Matthew Roche Y 27th Darlington Scouts 
To replenish the arts and crafts supplies and to invest in first aid training 

supplies. 5-Feb-2024 500.00 06/02/24
06/02/24

Parkside Nursery School Towards the role play/kitchen/home care area for the children. 5-Feb-2024 500.00 / 16/02/24 16/02/24

Park West Bob Donoghue Y Abbeyfield Society Towards the provision of 2 seats 6-Feb-2024 400.00 01/02/24 08/02/24

Rotary Club Towards the installation of a Defibrillator @ Blackwell Post Office 6-Feb-2024 600.00 29/02/24 29/02/24

Park West Heather Scott Y Abbeyfield Society Towards the provision of 2 seats 6-Feb-2024 400.00 01/02/24 08/02/24

Rotary Club Towards the installation of a Defibrillator @ Blackwell Post Office 6-Feb-2024 600.00 29/02/24 29/02/24

Pierremont Stephen Harker Y Cockerton Library Towards a park bench, for kids competition 21-Mar-2024 500.00 22/03/24 25/03/24

Darlington Bee Keeper Association To support the aviary in the Denes Park 21-Mar-2024 500.00 22/03/24

Pierremont Mary Layton Y Reid Street School Provide support to families. 8-Apr-2024 1000.00 16/04/24

Pierremont James McGill George Dent Nursery To support a number of projects at the Nursery 8-Apr-2024 1000.00 17/04/24 18/04/24

Red Hall and Lingfield Mandy Porter Y St Herberts Church Towards a new roof. 21-Jan-2024 250.00 23/01/24 08/02/24

Red Hall Community Centre To supply and install a Defibrillator. 21-Jan-2024 750.00 /
Red Hall and Lingfield Dr Amanda Riley Y St Herberts Church Towards a new roof. 21-Jan-2024 250.00 23/01/24 08/02/24

Red Hall Community Centre To supply and install a Defibrillator. 21-Jan-2024 750.00 /

Sadberge and Middlton St. George Deborah Laing Y
Middleton St George Community 

Fund Towards the Meet and Eat for pensioners  - awaiting auth 500.00
18/04/24

Community Centre Teenage Fitness 

Classes To cover costs for an eight -week period - awaiting auth 200.00
18/04/24

Girl Guides To cover trips for who can not afford. - awaiting auth 150.00 18/04/24

Brownies Cover costs 150.00
Sadberge and Middlton St. George Colin Pease Y St George's Academy To provide a School Garden at St George's Academy 12-Oct-2023 500.00 10/12/23                          Y Email Rec'd

Sadberge and Middlton St. George Yvonne Renton Y Sadberge Village Hall Towards any upgrades and repairs/equipment 16-Jan-2024 500.00                           Y 22/01/24

Bishopton Village Hall Towards any upgrades and repairs/equipment 16-Jan-2024 500.00 / 22/01/24 26/01/24

Stephenson Ian Haszeldine Y Gurney Pease Enhancing Learning oppotunities for pupils 200.00 24/01/24

Wesley Court Community Centre Towards the Christmas Social Event 100.00 18/12/23 18/12/24

7th Darlington Sea Scouts To improve and maintain the campsite 250.00 24/01/24

Darlington Railway Athletics Club Girls football team 450.00
Stephenson Mohammad Mahmud Y Gurney Pease Enhancing learning opportunities for pupils 200.00 24/01/24

Wesley Court Community Centre Towards the Christmas Social Event 100.00 18/12/23 18/12/24

27th Darlington Scouts Towards the funding of Adventure Day 21-Mar-2024 200.00 21/03/24 22/03/24

Y 7th Darlington Sea Scouts To improve and maintain the campsite 250.00 24/01/24

Arthur Wharton Foundation To purchase Flag Poles. 250.00
Whinfield Jamie Bartch Y Whinfield Yarn Bombers To purchase wool and materials for displays and to build up supplies 13-Feb-2024 50.00 14/02/024 16/02/24

Whinfield Residents Benches, Fenching, Flowers etc.. 600.00 18/04/24

DBC Trees for the Ward 339.85
Whinfield Andy Keir Y Whinfield Yarn Bombers To purchase wool and materials for displays and to build up supplies 13-Feb-2024 50.00 14/02/24 16/02/24

Whinfield Residents Benches, Fenching, Flowers etc.. 600.00 18/04/24

DBC Trees for the Ward 339.84

Total Spent  46299.70
Grant Allocation 

Remaining 3700.30

P
age 56



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

 

Stronger Communities Fund Agreement 

2023/24 

 

1. The Council has agreed to establish a Stronger Communities Fund as part of the approved 

Medium-Term Financial Plan. 
 

2. This Agreement is between Darlington Borough Council (the ‘Council’) and the elected 

Member of                                    Ward, Councillor                                   (the ‘Member’) and s ets 

out the conditions (on receipt of a signed copy of this Agreement) for the distribution of 

£1,000 (the ‘Funding’) to the Member to be used for the benefit of their ward and its residents  

 

The Fund 

3. As part of the approved Medium Term Financial Plan, £1,000 has been allocated to each 

individual Member to be used at their discretion to deliver the objectives of the Stronger 

Communities Fund.  

 

4. The proposed objectives of the fund as agreed by the Council are :- 

 

a. to support individuals and groups to enhance access to opportunities to 

improve health and wellbeing outcome within their Wards; and 

 

b.  to invest in environmental improvements which improve the local area to 

the benefit of the local community 

 

5. Examples of how the Funding could be used, include, but are not restricted to  :- 

 

a) supporting local groups with events or rents; 

 

b) supporting individuals to excel in sport or education; 

 

c) providing equipment for individuals in need of support; and 

 

d) contributing towards or funding the purchase of environmental 

improvements such as providing a park bench or play equipment 

 

6. The Council reserves the right to withdraw the account should it believe the Funding has been 

used inappropriately and/or has remained unspent.  For the avoidance of doubt, any funding 

which is not distributed by the Member will be repayable to the Council. 

 

Page 57



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Awarding the Funding 

7. The Member must publicise the Funding within their ward, through newsletters, notice boards 

etc, advising residents and organisations of the availability of the funding, the criteria and 

application process and the date by which any applications should be received. 

 

8. The Funding shall be allocated by 31 March 2024 

 

9. The Member must also consider whether the provisions of the Code of Conduct for Members 

will apply before agreeing to award any of the Funding.  Decisions to award Funding to an 

organisation that a Member works for, or is in a position of management or control, may be 

considered to be a pecuniary interest, and, as such, the Member must declare any potential 

conflict in section 18 below and seek advice about this from the Council’s Monitoring Officer.   

 

10.  In utilising the funding, in accordance with paragraph 10 below, the Member must not commit 

the Council to any future spend, for example, on-going maintenance. 

 

11. In using the Funding, the Member shall ensure that :- 

 

(a) the process of awarding Funding is open and transparent; 

 

(b) the funding will not be used for the Members’ personal or political gain; 

 

(c) no aspect of the Funding may be, or appear to be, party political in intention, use or 

presentation 

 

(d) the Funding has been used for the purpose that it was provided; and 

 

(e) funding shall only be made to individuals or ‘not for profit’ organisations that are 

resident in the Borough of Darlington. 
 

Releasing the Funding 

12. The Member will advise, in writing, the Democratic Manager of the details of their grant 

recipient together with the funding amount and the purpose for which the grant has been 

allocated. 

 

13. The details of the grant recipient and the purpose for which the grant has been allocated will 

be monitored by the Cabinet Member with Portfolio for Stronger Communities.  Any area of 

doubt as to whether the proposals are outside of the spirit and procedures of the Fund will be 

referred to the Chief Executive and the Monitoring Officer for determination.  

 

14. The Democratic Manager will advise, in writing, the grant recipient of the success of their 

application and request them to agree to the terms and conditions of the funding allocation. 

 

15. On receipt of 12 above, the Democratic Manager will transfer the total amount of funding, as 

agreed by the Member, to the funding recipient. 

 

Page 58



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

Publicity 

 

16. The Member should arrange for appropriate publicity in relation to the spend of their 

individual allocation to improve transparency and to promote how the money has been used 

to the benefit of the Ward. 

 

Monitoring of the Scheme 

 

17. The Stronger Communities Fund will be reviewed by the Communities and Local Services 

Scrutiny Committee on a six-monthly basis to ensure the Fund is meeting its aims and 

objectives and to inform decisions regarding its continuation into future financial years. 

 

Declaration and Acceptance of Grant Conditions  

 

18. In signing and accepting the terms of this Agreement, the Member must declare any potential 

conflict of interest in awarding the Fund below :-  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Member of the Council for :                                                       Ward  

 

Name :  

 

Signature :   

 

Authorised Signatory for the Council : 

 

Name :  S Wright, Democratic Manager 

 

Signature :  

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

 

Stronger Communities Fund Agreement 

2024/25 

 

1. The Council has agreed to establish a Stronger Communities Fund as part of the approved 

Medium-Term Financial Plan. 
 

2. This Agreement is between Darlington Borough Council (the ‘Council’) and the elected 

Member of                                    Ward, Councillor                                   (the ‘Member’) and s ets 

out the conditions (on receipt of a signed copy of this Agreement) for the distribution of 

£1,000 (the ‘Funding’) to the Member to be used for the benefit of their ward and its residents  

 

The Fund 

3. As part of the approved Medium Term Financial Plan, £1,000 has been allocated to each 

individual Member to be used at their discretion to deliver the objectives of the Stronger 

Communities Fund.  

 

4. The proposed objectives of the fund as agreed by the Council are :- 

 

a. to support individuals and groups to enhance access to opportunities to 

improve health and wellbeing outcome within their Wards; and 

 

b.  to invest in environmental improvements which improve the local area to 

the benefit of the local community 

 

5. Examples of how the Funding could be used, include, but are not restricted to  :- 

 

a) supporting local groups with events or rents; 

 

b) supporting individuals to excel in sport or education; 

 

c) providing equipment for individuals in need of support; and 

 

d) contributing towards or funding the purchase of environmental 

improvements such as providing a park bench or play equipment 

 

6. The Council reserves the right to refuse any application should it believe the Funding does not 

meet the provisions of the Scheme.  For the avoidance of doubt, any funding which is not 

distributed by the Member will be repayable to the Council. 

 

Page 61



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Awarding the Funding 

7. The Member is not required to publicise the availability of the Funding within their ward, 

however, they may wish to do so through newsletters, notice boards etc. 
 

8. The Funding shall be allocated by 31 March 2025 
 

9. The Member must also consider whether the provisions of the Code of Conduct for Members 

will apply before agreeing to award any of the Funding.  Decisions to award Funding to an 

organisation that a Member works for, or is in a position of management or control, may be 

considered to be a pecuniary interest, and, as such, the Member must declare any potential 

conflict in section 19 below and seek advice about this from the Council’s Monitoring Officer.   
 

10.  In utilising the funding, in accordance with paragraph 11 below, the Member must not commit 

the Council to any future spend, for example, on-going maintenance. 
 

11. In using the Funding, the Member shall ensure that :- 

 

(a) the process of awarding Funding is open and transparent; 

 

(b) the funding will not be used for the Members’ personal or political gain; 

 

(c) no aspect of the Funding may be, or appear to be, party political in intention, use or 

presentation 

 

(d) the Funding has been used for the purpose that it was provided; and 

 

(e) funding shall only be made to individuals or ‘not for profit’ organisations that are 

resident in the Borough of Darlington. 

 

Releasing the Funding 

12. The Member will advise, in writing, the Democratic Manager of the details of their grant 

recipient together with the funding amount and the purpose for which the grant has been 

allocated. 

 

13. The details of the grant recipient and the purpose for which the grant has been allocated will 

be authorised by the Monitoring Officer. Any area of doubt as to whether the proposals are 

outside of the spirit and procedures of the Fund will be determined by the Chief Executive and 

the Monitoring Officer. 

 

14. The Democratic Manager will advise, in writing, the grant recipient of the success of their 

application and request them to agree to the terms and conditions of the funding allocation. 

 

15. On receipt of 14 above, the Democratic Manager will transfer the total amount of funding, as 

agreed by the Member, to the funding recipient. 

 

Page 62



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

Publicity 

 

16. Details of the Scheme will be proactively promoted by the Council at the commencement of 

each financial year via social media. 

 

17. The Member should arrange for appropriate publicity in relation to the spend of their 

individual allocation to improve transparency and to promote how the money has been used 

to the benefit of the Ward. 

 

Monitoring of the Scheme 

 

18. The Stronger Communities Fund will be reviewed by the Communities and Local Services 

Scrutiny Committee on a six-monthly basis to ensure the Fund is meeting its aims and 

objectives and to inform decisions regarding its continuation into future financial years. 

 

Declaration and Acceptance of Grant Conditions  

 

19. In signing and accepting the terms of this Agreement, the Member must declare any potential 

conflict of interest in awarding the Fund below :-  

 

 

 
 

 

 

NOTE – Any potential areas of conflict about the allocation of the fund will be referred to the Chief 

Executive for consideration prior to allocation of the funding. 

 

Member of the Council for :                                                       Ward  

Name :  

 

Signature :   

 

Authorised Signatory for the Council : 

 

Name :  S Wright, Democratic Manager 

 

Signature :  

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
29 AUGUST 2024 

 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 

 

 
SUMMARY REPORT 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To consider the work programme items scheduled to be considered by this Scrutiny 

Committee during the 2024/25 Municipal Year and to consider any additional areas which 
Members would like to suggest should be added to the previously approved work 

programme. 
 

Summary  
 

2. Members are requested to consider the attached work programme (Appendix 1) for the 
remainder of the 2024/25 Municipal Year which has been prepared based on Officers 

recommendations and recommendations previously agreed by this Scrutiny Committee. 
 

3. Any additional areas of work which Members wish to add to the agreed work programme 
will require the completion of a quad of aims in accordance with the previously approved 

procedure (Appendix 2). 
 

4. Two Quads of Aims have been received by Members in relation to Customer Relationship 
System and Accessibility Review.  In accordance with the agreed process, these items are 

still under discussion as to the most effective way to consider them and an update will be 

given at the next meeting. 
 

Recommendation 
 

5. It is recommended that Members note the current status of the Work Programme and 
consider any additional areas of work they would like to include. 

 
Luke Swinhoe 

Assistant Director Law and Governance 
 

 
Background Papers 

No background papers were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
Author: Olivia Hugill Ext: 5363 

  

Page 65

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Council Plan The report contributes to the Council Plan in a number of ways through the 

involvement of Members in contributing to the delivery of the Plan. The 
Work Programme contains items which enable Members to scrutinise those 

areas that contribute the priority of ‘Communities’ – Working together for 
safer, healthier and more engaged communities and ‘Local Environment’ – 

A well-connected, clean and sustainable borough. 
Addressing inequalities  There are no issues relating to diversity which this report needs to address . 

Tackling Climate Change There are no issues which this report needs to address. 

Efficient and effective use 
of resources 

This report has no impact on the Council’s Efficiency Programme. 
 

Health and Wellbeing This report has no direct implications to the Health and Well Being of 

residents of Darlington. 
 

S17 Crime and Disorder This report has no implications for Crime and Disorder  
 

Wards Affected The impact of the report on any individual Ward is considered to be 

minimal. 
 

Groups Affected The impact of the report on any individual Group is considered to be 
minimal. 

 

Budget and Policy 
Framework  

This report does not represent a change to the budget and policy 
framework. 

Key Decision This is not a key decision. 

 
Urgent Decision This is not an urgent decision  

 
Impact on Looked After 
Children and Care Leavers 

This report has no impact on Looked After Children or Care Leavers. 
 

 
MAIN REPORT 

 
Information and Analysis 
 
6. The format of the proposed work programme has been reviewed to enable Members of 

this Scrutiny Committee to provide a rigorous and informed challenge to the areas for 
discussion.  

 
Forward Plan and Additional Items 

 

7. Once the Work Programme has been agreed by this Scrutiny Committee, any Member 
seeking to add a new item to the work programme will need to complete a quad of aims.   
 

8. A copy of the Forward Plan has been attached at Appendix 3 for information. 

Page 66



 
This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 APPENDIX 1 

 
COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME  

 

Topic 

 
Timescale 

 
Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 
Involved 

Link to Performance 
Management 
Framework (metrics) 

Scrutiny’s Role 

Performance Management and 
Regulation/ Management of Change 
 
Regular Performance Reports to be 
Programmed 
 
 
End of Year Performance (including 
Compliments Comments and 
Complaints) 

16 January 2025 
(Q2) 
 
 
Year End  
August 2024 

Relevant AD Full Performance 
Management 
Framework suite of 
indicators.  

To receive quarterly monitoring reports 
and undertake any further detailed 
work into particular outcomes if 
necessary. 

Stronger Communities Fund  
Update 

Year End 
August 2024 
 
January 2025 

Stronger 
Communities 
Portfolio Holder 

 To update Scrutiny Members. 

Local Transport Plan 27 February 2025 
 
Last received  
22 February 2024 

Andy Casey/ 
Anthony Hewitt 

 To scrutinise and undertake any further 
work if necessary. 

Public Sector Executive Group 
6 Month Review 

16 January 2025 
 
Last considered  
22 February 2024 

Seth Pearson   To scrutinise and undertake any further 
work if necessary. 

P
age 67



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Topic 

 
Timescale 

 
Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 
Involved 

Link to Performance 
Management 
Framework (metrics) 

Scrutiny’s Role 

Tree and Woodland Strategy  April / May 2025 
 
Last considered  
18 April 2024 

Brian Graham 
 
 

 To receive a yearly review of the 
strategy. 

Tees Valley Combined Authority 
Transport Committee 

Last received on 22 
February 2024.  
 
To be received when 
published.  

Anthony Hewitt  To receive the Minutes from the Tees 
Valley Combined Authority Transport 
Committee  

Environment Act 2021 – Waste 
Management Arrangements  
 

Special Scrutiny 
Meeting – 26 
September 2024 
 
Last considered 21 
October 2021 

Ian Thompson  To give Scrutiny Members the 
opportunity to consider prior to 
Cabinet. 
 

Darlington Cultural Strategy Action 
Plan for 2024/25   

June 2025 
 
Last considered 
13 June 2024 

Stephen Wiper   Annual update for Scrutiny Members. 

Residents’ Parking Permits – 
Differential Charges  

16 January 2025 Anthony Hewitt   To scrutinise and undertake any further 
work if necessary.  

Private Sector Housing  10 April 2025  Christine Booth  To scrutinise and undertake any further 
work if necessary.  

Allotment Strategy Review  27 February 2025  Brian Graham  To scrutinise and undertake any further 
work if necessary.  
 

Parks and Open Spaces  10 April 2025  Brian Graham   To scrutinise and undertake any further 
work if necessary.  
 

P
age 68



 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Topic 

 
Timescale 

 
Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 
Involved 

Link to Performance 
Management 
Framework (metrics) 

Scrutiny’s Role 

Town Centre Programme  24 October 2024  Alex Nicholson   To scrutinise and undertake any further 
work if necessary.  
 

Waste Control Review - To look at fly 
tipping and back lane strategy/bins  

27 February 2025 Brian Graham   To scrutinise and undertake any further 
work if necessary.  
 

 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

PLEASE RETURN TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

T:/Scrutiny/$lclzz5b0.docx 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Appendix 2 

PROCESS FOR ADDING AN ITEM TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEE’S  
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED WORK PROGRAMME 

 

Member Completes Quad of Aims 
(Section 1) 

Completed Quad of Aims to 
Democratic Services 

Refer to Monitoring and 
Co-ordination Group for clarification 
of appropriate Scrutiny Committee 

and in cases of cross cutting issues if 
needed 

 

Scrutiny Committee decision about 
addition to Work Programme 

Forwarded to Director/AD 
 for views (Section 2) 

(NOTE – There is an expectation that the Officer 
will  discuss the request with the Member)  

Criteria 
1. Information already provided/or will 

be provided to Member 
 

2. Extent of workload involved in 
meeting request 

 
3. Request linked to an ongoing 

Scrutiny Committee item of work 
and can be picked up as part of that 

work 
 

4. Subject to another Council process 
for enquiry or examination (such as 

Planning Committee or Licensing 

Committee) 
 

5. About an individual or entity that 
has a right of appeal 

 
6. Some other substantial reason 

Note  
 
Statutory Scrutiny Officer can liaise with 
Member AD/Director and Chair over 
how best any requests can be dealt with  

Advise Chair of relevant Scrutiny 
Committee of the Quad of Aims and 

the view of Officers 

Include on next Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda  

(new work requests) 
 

Page 71



QUAD OF AIMS (MEMBERS’ REQUEST FOR ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED BY SCRUTINY)   
 

 

SECTION 1 TO BE COMPLETED BY MEMBERS  
 
NOTE – This document should only be completed if there is a clearly defined and significant outcome from any potential further work.   This document 
should not be completed as a request for or understanding of information.   
 
 

REASON FOR REQUEST? 

 

RESOURCE (WHAT OFFICER SUPPORT WOULD YOU REQUIRE?) 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

PROCESS (HOW CAN SCRUTINY ACHIEVE THE ANTICIPATED 
OUTCOME?) 

 

 HOW WILL THE OUTCOME MAKE A DIFFERENCE? 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Signed   Councillor ……………………………………………    Date ………………………………………………………. 
 

P
age 72



 

PLEASE RETURN TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

T:/Scrutiny/$lclzz5b0.docx 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

SECTION 2 TO BE COMPLETED BY DIRECTORS/ASSISTANT DIRECTORS 
(NOTE – There is an expectation that Officers will discuss the request with the Member) 

1. (a)  Is the information available elsewhere?     Yes ……………….. No ……………….. 

If yes, please indicate where the information can be found (attach if possible and return with this document to Democratic 
Services) 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

(b)  Have you already provided the information to the Member or will you shortly be doing so? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 
2. If the request is included in the Scrutiny Committee work programme what are the likely workload implications for you/your 

staff? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

3. Can the request be included in an ongoing Scrutiny Committee item of work and picked up as part of that? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

4. Is there another Council process for enquiry or examination about the matter currently underway? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

5. Has the individual or entity some other right of appeal? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

6. Is there any substantial reason (other than the above) why you feel it should not be included on the work programme ? 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Criteria 
 

1. Information already 

provided/or will  be 
provided to Member 
 

2. Extent of workload involved 

in meeting request 
 

3. Request l inked to an 

ongoing Scrutiny 
Committee item of work 
and can be picked up as 
part of that work 

 
4. Subject to another Council 

process for enquiry or 
examination (such as 

Planning Committee or 
Licensing Committee) 
 

5. About an individual or 
entity that has a right of 
appeal 
 

6. Some other substantial 
reason 

Signed ……………………………………… Position …………………………………………………………….. Date ……………………… 

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



DARLINGTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN 

 

- 1 - 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 

 
 

 
 

 
FORWARD PLAN  

FOR THE PERIOD: 5 JUNE 2024 - 30 OCTOBER 2024 
 

Title 
 

Decision Maker and Date 

Darlington Long Term Plan for 
Town Funds 

Cabinet 11 Jun 2024 

Release of Education Capital 

Funds 

Cabinet 11 Jun 2024 

Representation on Other Bodies 
2024/25 

Cabinet 11 Jun 2024 

Schedule of Transactions - June 

2024 

Cabinet 11 Jun 2024 

Wilkinsons Building Acquisition 

and Procurement of 
Development Partner 

Cabinet 11 Jun 2024 

Collection of Council Tax, 
Business Rates and Rent 2023-24 

Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Council Plan Council 25 Jul 2024 
 
Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Council Plan Performance Report 

- Quarter Four 

Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Disabled Facilities Grant 2024/25 Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Housing Services Domestic Abuse 
Policy 2024/29 

Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Housing Services Gas and 
Electrical Safety Policies 2024/29 

Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Land at Faverdale / Burtree 
Garden Village 'Cell CH' 

Feasibility Work 

Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Project Position Statement and 

Capital Programme Monitoring 
Outturn 2023/24 

Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Public Consultation on Draft 

Appraisal for the Northgate 
Conservation Area including 

Proposed Boundary Extensions 

Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Revenue Budget Outturn 

2023/24 

Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Page 75



DARLINGTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN 

 

- 2 - 
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Xentrall Shared Services Annual 
Report 

Cabinet 9 Jul 2024 

Annual Review of the Investment 
Fund 

Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 

Climate Change Council 26 Sep 2024 

 
Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 

Complaints, Compliments and 
Comments Annual Reports 

2023/24 

Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 

Complaints Made to Local 
Government Ombudsman 

Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 

Land at Faverdale  - Burtree 
Garden Village - Proposed 

Infrastructure Development 
Agreement (IDA) 

Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 

Project Position Statement and 
Capital Programme Monitoring  - 
Quarter 1 

Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 

Proposed Middleton St George 
Conservation Area - Consultation 

Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 

Regulatory Investigatory Powers 

Act (RIPA) 

Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 

Revenue Budget Monitoring - 

Quarter 1 

Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 

Treasury Management Annual 
Report and Outturn Prudential 
Indicators 2023/2024 

Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 

Waste Collection Arrangements Cabinet 10 Sep 2024 
Annual Procurement Plan Update Cabinet 8 Oct 2024 

Offset Strategy Cabinet 8 Oct 2024 

Air Quality Strategy 2024/29 Cabinet  

 
 

Page 76


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny held on 13 June 2024
	4 Performance Indicators - Quarter 4 2023/24
	Communities & Local Services - 23-24 Q4 Scorecard
	Communities & Local Services Scrutiny - 2023-24 Q4 - Appendix 2
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 037
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 038
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 070
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 071
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 078
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 079
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 100
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 101
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 102
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 103
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 104
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 105
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 106
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 107
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 108
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 CUL 109
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 ENV 002
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 ENV 006e
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 ENV 006f
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 ENV 009
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 ENV 021
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 ENV 022
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 ENV 023
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 ENV 024
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 REG 803
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 TCP 101
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 TCP 200
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 TCP 202
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 TCP 203
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 TCP 600
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 TCP 601
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 TCP 602
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 TCP 603
	Scrutiny - 2023-24 Qtr 4 TCP 900


	5 Stronger Community Fund
	All Cllrs Expenditure Spreadsheet 23-24 - Copy - Copy
	Agreement Template 2023-24 Appendix 2
	Agreement Template 2024-25 - Document A Appendix 3

	6 Work Programme
	Item No. 9 - Work Programme - Appendix 1 2024 25
	Item No. 9 - Work Programme - Appendix 2
	Item No. 9 - Work Programme - Appendix 3


